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NOTICE OF THIRTY NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Ninth Annual General Meeting of the members of PH Trading Limited will 
be held on 30th September, 2021 at 4.00 P.M. at the registered office of the Company at 113, Park Street, Poddar 
Point, ‘B’ Block, and Kolkata - 700 016 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

 1. Item No. 1 - “To receive, consider and adopt (a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the  
  financial year ended 31st March, 2021 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon:  
  and (b) the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31st  
  March, 2021 and the reports of the Auditors thereon,”

 2. Item No. 2 - “To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Avishek Himatsingka (DIN-00613082) who retires by  
  rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment as director of the company:”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

 3. Item 3: TO APPROVE THE INVESTMENT LIMIT UP TO RUPEES 3,00,00,000/- UNDER SECTION 186 OF  
  THE COMPANIES ACT 2013.

  To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as a  
  Special Resolution:- 

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act. 13, read with the  
  Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules. and other applicable provisions, if any, (including  
  any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), if any, the approval of the  
  members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board to (a) give any loan to any body  
  corporate(s) / person (s); (h) give any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to  
  corporate(s) / person (s); and (c) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, securities of  
  anybody corporate from time to time in one or more trenches as the Board of Directors as in their absolute  
  discretion deem beneficial and in the interest of the Company, for an amount not exceeding 
  Rs 3.00,00,000 (Rupees Three Crore Only) outstanding at any time notwithstanding that such  
  investments, outstanding loans given or to be given and guarantees and security provided are in excess  
  of the limits prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

  “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, for the purpose of giving effect to the above, Board of Directors of the  
  Company and/or any person authorized by the Board from time to time be and is hereby empowered  
  and authorized to take such steps as he necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory or otherwise, in  
  relation to the above and to settle all matters arising out of and incidental thereto and to sign and  
  to execute deeds, applications, documents and writings that may be required, on behalf of the Company  
  and generally to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient or  
  incidental for giving effect to this resolution.”

 4. Item 4: Approval for the purpose of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 20l3

  To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as a  
  Special Resolution:-

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act. 13, read with the  
  to the provisions ot Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended by the Companies (Amendment)  
  Act. 2017 read with allied Rules. approval of members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for 
  advancing loan(s), in one more tranches, to DHYANESHWAR TRADERS PRIVATE LIMITED being entity  
  covered under the category - of ‘a person in whom any of the director of the company is interested’  
  as specified in the explanalion to subsection 2 of the said Section), of an aggregate oulstanding amonnl  
  nol exceeding only Rs.2.50,00,000/ (Rupees Two Crore and fifty lakhs only).
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Place: Kolkata
Date: 30-06-2021

  “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, for the purpose of effect to this resolution, the Board of Directors of the  
  Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”) and such other authoirty, as may be authorised by  
  the Board, from time to time, in this regard, be and is hereby authorized to negotiate, finalise and  
  agree to the terms and conditions of the aforesaid Load, and to take all necessary steps, to execute all  
  such documents, instruments and writings and to do all such acts, deeds or things in order to comply  
  with all the legal and procedural formalities and to do all such acts, deeds or things incidental or  
  expedient thereto and as the Board may think fit and suitable.”

For PH Trading Limited

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka
Director

Din No: 00613105

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

In Respect to Item 3:

In order to make optimum use of funds available with the Company and also to achieve long term strategic 
and business objectives, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes to make use of the same by making 
investment in other bodies corporate or granting loans, giving guarantee or providing security to other persons 
or other body corporate or as and when required.

Pursuant to the provisions of section 186(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the 
Company needs to obtain prior approval of shareholders by way of special resolution passed at the General 
Meeting in case the amount of investment, loan, guarantee or security proposed to be made is more than the 
higher of sixty percent of the paid up share capital, free reserves and securities premium account or one hundred 
percent of free reserves and securities premium account.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes to obtain approval of shareholders by way of 
special resolution as contained in the notice for an amount not exceeding Rs.3,00,00,000 (Rupees Three Crore 
Only) outstanding at any time notwithstanding that such investments, outstanding loans given or to be given 
and guarantees and security provided are in excess of the limits prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

Therefore, the said Special Resolution is proposed for the approval of members under the item No.3 under 
Special Business of the Notice.

None of the Directors or the Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way interested or concerned, 
financially or otherwise in this Resolution.

In Respect to Item 4:

The Company proposes for advancing loan(s) to DHYANESHWAR TRADERS PRIVATE LIMITED for business 
purpose, Pursuant to Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended the Company and DHYANESHWAR 
TRADERS PRIVATE LIMITED are entities covered under ‘a person in whom any of the director of the company 
is interested’, as DHYANESHWAR TRADERS PRIVATE LIMITED & the Companies have common directors Mr 
Prakash Chandra Himatsingka, Mr. Tushar S Dave   & Mr. Amar Chand Agarwal  hence the provisions of Section 
185 of the Companies Act, 2013, mandates that such loan can be provided if a Special Resolution at the General 
Meeting of the Shareholders is passed.
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Place: Kolkata
Date: 30-06-2021

The required particulars as per proviso to Section 185(2) are given hereunder.

Name of the Company to whom 
loan is being given Particulars of loans to be given Purpose for which the loan 

is taken/to be taken

DHYANESHWAR TRADERS
PRIVATE LIMITED

Aggregate outstanding amount of loan 
not exceeding Rs.2,50,00,000/- (Rupees 
two Croce and fifty lakhs  only). The loan 
taken/to be taken is to be repayable on 
demand at an interest rate which would 
not be less than the rate of interest as 
mentioned in applicable laws.

The Loan is taken/to be 
taken carrying on its 
principal business activities

Mr Prakash Chandra Himatsingka, Mr. Tushar S Dave & Mr. Amar Chand Agarwal being the common directors  
between the Company including their relatives to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any, none 
of the other Directors or the Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way interested or concerned, 
financially or otherwise in this Resolution.

For PH Trading Limited

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka
Director

Din No: 00613105

Additional Information of Directors working appointment / re-appointment at the 39th Annual General 
Meeting pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

Annexure as referred to in note No. 2 on notice 

Name of the Director Mr. Avishek Himatsingka

Director Identification Number DIN : 00613082

Date of Birth 28/02/1977

Date of Appointment 06/04/2005

Educational Qualification B. COM

Expertise in specific functional areas Marketing

Chairmanship/ Membership of Committees in this 
Company

-yes-

Present Status of directorship in this Company Promoter, Executive Director

Directorship in other Public Limited Company None.  
Chairmanship/Membership of Committees in other 
Public Limited Company

None 

Shareholding as on 31st March, 2021 290950

Seeking appointment / re-appointment Retire by rotation and seeking re-appointment 
Rotational status Retire by rotation

Tenure of appointment Not Applicable 
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NOTES:

 1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint proxy to attend and vote  
  instead of himself and such a proxy need not be a member of the company. The proxy in order to be  
  effective should be duly stamped, completed and signed and must be deposited at the registered office  
  of the company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the aforesaid meeting.

  A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not  
  more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member  
  holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may  
  appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

 2. In terms of Articles of Association of the Company, read with Section152  of the Companies Act 2013,  
  Mr. Avishek Himatsingka (DIN-00613082) retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting  
  and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors of the Company commends  
  his re-appointment.

 3. The Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,  
  2013 (‘‘the Act’’), in respect of the Special Business under Item no. 3 to 4 set above and the details as  
  required under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation sand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,  
  2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) and Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2) in respect of the  
  Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto.

 4. The dates for the closure of the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company are from  
  24.09.2021 to 30.09.2021(both days inclusive).

 5.  Members are requested to bring their copies of the Reports and Accounts to the Meetings.Members  
  seeking any information or clarification on the Accounts are requested to send, in writing, queries to the  
  Company, at least one week before the date of the meeting. Replies will be provided, in respect of such  
  written queries, only at the meeting. 

 6.  Members / Proxies should fill the Attendance Slip for attending the meeting, Members who hold shares  
  in dematerialized form are requested to write their Client ID and DPID numbers and those who hold  
  shares in physical form are requested to write their Folio Number in the attendance slip for attending  
  the meeting. 

 7.  Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives are requested to send a duly  
  certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the Annual  
  General Meeting. 

 8.  Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify any change in their address and  
  particulars of their bank account immediately in the Company at its Registered Office or its Registrar &  
  Share Transfer Agents office M/s Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd., 3A, Auckland Place, 7th floor, Room no.  
  7A & 7B, Kolkata – 700017. The following particulars are required:-
 
  a) Name of First / Sole Shareholder and their Folio Number. 
  b) Name of Bank, complete address of Branch and IFS Code Number. 
  c) Account type, whether savings or current account and account number allotted by Bank. 

 9.  Members holding shares in electronic form may please note that their bank details as furnished by the  
  respective Depositories to the Company as per applicable regulation of the Depositories and the  
  Company will not entertain any direct request from such members for change / deletion in such bank  
  details. 

 10. At present the Company’s equity share are listed on the Stock Exchanges at Kolkata and Bombay Stock  
  Exchange Limited listing fees for the current financial year 2021-22 have been paid to the aforesaid Stock  
  Exchange. Members are informed that the scripts of the Company has been activated in Central  
  Depositories Services Limited (CDSL) and may be dematerialized under the ISIN –INE603D01017.
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  The custodian fees for the current financial year 2021-22 have been paid to the aforesaid Depository. 

 11. All documents referred to in accompanying Notice are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the  
  Company on all working days between 11.00 A.M. to 1.00 P.M. upto the date of the  Annual General  
  Meeting.

 12. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated to submission of Permanent Account  
  Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form  
  are, therefore requested to submit their PAN to their Depository participants with whom they are  
  maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to  
  the Company and or its Registrar & Share Transfer Agents.

 13. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has come out with a Circular Nos. 17/2011 dated 21/04/2011 &  
  18/2011 dated 29/04/2011 propagating “Green initiative” encouraging Corporate to serve documents  
  though electronic mode. In order to above, those shareholders, who want the Annual Report in electronic  
  mode, are requested to send their e-mail address. 

 14. Voting Through Electronic Means: 

  I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the  
    Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies  
    (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI(Listing  
    Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide  
    members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the  
    Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through  
    e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system  
    from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by Central Depository  
    Services (India) Limited (CDSL).
 
  II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members  
    attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise  
    their right at the meeting through ballot paper. The members who have cast their vote by remote  
    e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

  III. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:
    The remote e-voting period commences on 27thSeptember, 2021 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) and ends on  
    29thSeptember,2021 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). During this period members’ of the Company, holding  
    shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 23rd September,  
    2021, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL  
    for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be  
    allowed to change it subsequently.

If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

 a) Login method for e-Voting: Applicable only for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat

 As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,  
 Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account  
 maintained with their respective Depositories and Depository Participants as detailed below. Shareholders  
 are advised to updatetheir mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting  
 facility.

PROCEDURE TO LOGIN THROUGH WEBSITES OF DEPOSITORIES

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individualshareholders holding securities in Demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained withtheir respective Depositories and Depository Participants as detailed below. Shareholders are 
advised to updatetheir mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”)

 1. Users already registered for IDeAS e-Services facility of NSDL may follow the following procedure:
  i. Type in the browser / Click on the following e-Services link: https://eservices.nsdl.com
  ii. Click on the button “Beneficial Owner” available for login under ‘IDeAS’ section.
  iii. A new page will open. Enter your User ID and Password for accessing IDeAS.
  iv. On successful authentication, you will enter your IDeAS service login. Click on “Access to e-Voting”  
    under Value AddedServices on the panel available on the left hand side.
  v. Click on “Active E-voting Cycles” option under E-voting.
  vi. Click on the company name or e-Voting serviceprovider and you will be re-directed to e-Voting  
    service provider website for casting the voteduring the remote e-Voting period.

 2. Users not registered for IDeAS e-Services facility of NSDLmay follow the following procedure:
  i. To register, type in the browser / Click on the followinge-Services link: https://eservices.nsdl.com
  ii. Select option “Register Online for IDeAS” available on the lefthand side of the page
  iii. Proceed to complete registration using your DP ID, Client ID,Mobile Number etc.
  iv. Proceed with completing the required fields.
 
 3. Users may directly access the e-Voting module of NSDL asper the following procedure:
  i. Type in the browser / Click on the following link: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
  ii. Click on the button “Login” available under “Shareholder/Member” section.
  iii. On the login page, enter User ID (that is, 16-character demat account number held with NSDL,  
    starting with IN), Login Type,that is, through typing Password (in case you are registeredon NSDL’s  
    e-voting platform)/ through generation of OTP (incase your mobile/e-mail address is registered in  
    your demat account) and Verification Code as shown on the screen.
  iv. On successful authentication, you will enter the e-votingmodule of NSDL. Click on “Active E-voting  
    Cycles / VC orOAVMs” option under E-voting. Click on the company name or e-Voting serviceprovider  
    name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting yourvote during the  
    remote e-Voting period.

Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”)

 1. Users already registered for Easi / Easiest facility of CDSL may follow the following procedure:
  i. Type in the browser / Click on any of the following links: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/ 
    login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi / Loginto My Easi option under Quick  
    Login (best operational inInternet Explorer 10 or above and Mozilla Firefox)
  ii. Enter your User ID and Password for accessing Easi / Easiest.
  iii. Click on company name or e-Voting service providername to cast your vote during the remote  
    e-Votingperiod.

 2. Users not registered for Easi/Easiest facility of CDSL may follow the following procedure:
  i. To register, type in the browser / Click on the following link: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/ 
    Registration/EasiRegistration
  ii. Proceed to complete registration using your DP ID-ClientID (BO ID), etc.
  iii. After successful registration, please follow steps given underSr. No. 1 above to cast your vote.

 3. Users may directly access the e-Voting module of CDSL asper the following procedure:
  i. Type in the browser / Click on the following links: www.cdslindia.com / https://www.evotingindia.com
  ii. Provide Demat Account Number and PAN
  iii. System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registeredMobile & E-mail as recorded in the Demat  
    Account.
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4. On successful authentication, you will enter the e-voting module of CDSL. Click on the company name and you  
 will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website forcasting your vote during the remote e-Voting p 
 period.

PROCEDURE TO LOGIN THROUGH THEIR DEMAT ACCOUNTS / WEBSITE OF DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT
 
You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant 
registeredwith NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on 
e-Voting optionand you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication. Click 
on the company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 
website for castingyour vote during the remote e-Voting period.

IMPORTANT:
Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use “Forgot User ID” / “Forgot 
Password”options available on the websites of Depositories / Depository Participants.

Contact details in case of any technical issue on 
NSDL Website

Contact details in case of any technical issue on 
CDSL Website

Members facing any technical issue during login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evot-
ing@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free nos.: 1800 1020 990 
/ 1800 22 44 30

Members facing any technical issue during login 
can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request 
at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43

Login method for e-Voting: Applicable only for Members holding shares in physical form and for Non-Individual 
Members (holding shares either in physical or demat):
 1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
 2) Click on “Shareholders” module.
 3) Now enter your User ID a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed  
  by 8 Digits Client ID, c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number  
  registered with the Company.
 4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
 5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on  
  anearlier e-voting of any company, then your existingpassword is to be used.
 6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps givenbelow:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax 
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as 
physical shareholders)
• Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/
Depository Participant are requested to use the first two letters of 
their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the PAN Field.
• In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the 
applicable number of 0’s before the number after the first two 
characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh 
Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN 
Field.

DOB
Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account with the 
depository or in the company records for your folio in dd/mm/yyyy 
format



9

PH TRADING LIMITED
CIN NO: L51109WB1982PLC035011

Bank Account Number (DBD)

Enter the Bank Account Number as recorded in your demat account 
with the depository or in the company records for your folio.
• Please Enter the DOB or Bank Account Number in order to Login. 
• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or 
company then please enter the member-id / folio number in the Bank 
Account Number details field as mentioned in above instruction (IV).

 
 7) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
 8) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.  
  However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they  
  are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this  
  password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on  
  which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is  
  strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep  
  your password confidential.
 9) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions  
  contained in this Notice.
 10) Click on the EVSN for the relevant Company Name i.e “PH Trading Limited “on which you choose to vote.  
  On which you choose to vote.
 11) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/ 
  NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the  
  Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.
 12) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
 13) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will  
  be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL”  
  and accordingly modify your vote.
 14) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
 15) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the  
  Voting page.
 16) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then enter the User ID and the image  
  verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
 17) Note for Institutional Shareholders& Custodians :
  • Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, and NRI etc.) and Custodians are  
   required to log on to https://www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. 
  • A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed  
   to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
  • After receiving the login details they have to create a compliance user which should be created  
   using the admin login and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for  
   which they wish to vote on.
  • The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the  
   accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 
  • A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in  
   favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to  
   verify the same.
 18) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions  
  (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email  
  to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact them at 18002005533
 19) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-voting available for android based  
  mobiles. The m-voting app can be downloaded from Google play store. IPhone and windows phone  
  users can download the app from the App Store and the windows phone store respectively. Please  
  follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.
 20). Institutional Members/ Bodies Corporate (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required  
  to send scanned copy (PDF/ JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc.  
  together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised signatory(ies) who are authorised to  
  vote through e-mail at csrajansingh2014@gmail.com with a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@ 
  cdslindia.com on or before 29thSeptember, 2021 (5.00 P.M.) without which the vote shall not be  
  treated as valid. 
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 21. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share  
  capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 23rdSeptember, 2021. A person who is not a member  
  as on Cut Off date should treat this notice for information purpose only.
 22. The notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members, whose names appear in the register  
  of members / depositories as at closing hours of business, on 6th September, 2021.
 23. The shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held by them as on the cut-off date of 23nd  
  September, 2021. The facility of e-voting would be provided once for every folio/ client id, irrespective  
  of the number of joint holders. 
 24. Since the Company is required to provide members the facility to cast their vote by electronic means,  
  shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on  
  the cut-off date of 23rdSeptember, 2021and not casting their vote electronically, may only cast their  
  vote at the Annual General Meeting
 25. Investors who became members of the Company subsequent to the dispatch of the Notice / Email  
  and holds the shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 23rd September, 2021are requested to send the written  
  / email communication to the Company at himatsingka@hotmail.com by mentioning their Folio No. /  
  DP ID and Client ID to obtain the Login-ID and Password for e-voting.
 26. Notice of the AGM along with attendance slip, proxy form along with the process, instructions and the  
  manner of conducting  e-voting is being sent electronically to all the members whose email IDs are  
  registered with the company /Depository Participant(s). For members whose request for a hard copy  
  and for those who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the same are being sent  
  through the permitted mode. 
 27. Mr. Rajan Singh, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.F10541), has been appointed as the  
  Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall,  
  within a period of two working days from the conclusion of it 39th Annual General Meeting, unblock the  
  votes in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make a  
  Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favor or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the  
  Company. 
 28. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website 
  www.phtradinglimited.com and on the website of CDSL viz. www.cdslindia.com within two days of the  
  passing of the resolutions at the 39th Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2021 and  
  communicated to the Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.,& Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. where the shares of  
  the Company are listed. 
 29. Since e-voting facility is provided to the Members pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the  
  Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, voting by  
  show of hands are not allowed. 

 30. (a) As per provisions of Section 124 of Companies act, 2013, the Company has already transferred to  
    the General Revenue Account of the Central Government the amount of all unclaimed  
    dividends declared upto and including the financial year ended 31st March 2013. Hence to  
    claim dividend upto the said period, the members are advised to approach the Registrar of  
    Companies, West Bengal 234/4, AcharyaJagdish Chandra Bose Road, Kolkata-700020.
 
  (b) According to provisions of Section 125 and other applicable provisions of the Companies  
    Act,2013, dividend for the financial year ended 31st March 2013, and thereafter which  
    remain unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 years will be transferred to the Investor  
    Education and Protection Fund established by Central Government.

Members who have not en-cashed the dividend warrant (s) for the financial year ended 31st March 2013 or any 
subsequent financial years are requested to make claim to the share department of the Company. It may also 
be noted that once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to the Fund, as above, no claims shall lie in respect 
of such dividend.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

(To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall)

Annual General Meeting - 30th September 2021

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the annual general meeting of “PH Trading Limited” held on Thursday, 
30th September 2021 at 4.00 P.M. at 113, Park Street, ‘B” Block 10th floor, Kolkata - 700 016.

Full Name of the member (IN BLOCK LETTER) __________________________________________________

Folio No.________________ DP ID No.__________________ Client ID No._________________

Full name of the Proxy (IN BLOCK LETTER):_____________________________________________________

Member/ Proxy(s) Signature _______________________________________________

(Please cut here and bring the attendance slip duly signed, to the meeting and hand it over the entrance. 
Duplicate slips will not be issued at the venue of the meeting)
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(39th Annual General Meeting – 30th September, 2021)

Form No. MGT-11

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 of the Company (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014] 

CIN: L51109WB1982PLC035011

Name of the Company: PH TRADING LIMITED

Registered office         : PODDAR POINT, 113 PARK ST, BLOCK B, 10 TH FLOOR
                                        KOLKATA - 700 016

Name of the Member:

Registered address:

Email Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID:

I / I, being the member of _______________________________shares of the above Company, hereby appoint.

1. Name: ________________________________ Address__________________________________________

    Email Id: ____________________________    Signature: ____________or failing him
 
2. Name: ________________________________ Address__________________________________________

    Email Id: ____________________________    Signature: ____________or failing him
 
3. Name: ________________________________ Address__________________________________________

    Email Id: ____________________________    Signature: ____________ Or

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, to be held on Thursday30th September 2021 at 4.00 P.M. at 113, Park Street :Poddar Point B-Block, 
Kolkata- 700 016 in respect of such resolution(s) as are indicated below:

Resolution No. Resolution Optional
ORDINARY BUSINESS For Against
1 To consider and adopt the Audited Standalone & consolidated) 

Financial Statements, Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors.

2 For reappointment of Mr. Avishek Himatsingka, who retires by 
rotation.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3 To Approve The Investment Limit Up To Rupees 3,00,00,000/- 
Under Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

4 Approval for the purpose of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013
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Signed this ….. Day of…… 2021

Signature of the Shareholder(s) ___________ Signature of Proxy(s)

Signed this …..................... Day of…............… 2021

Signature of the Shareholder(s) ___________ Signature of Proxy(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company, before the commencement of the Meeting.

Affix Revenue 
Stamp
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ROADMAP
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113, Park Street Poddar Point, “B”- Block, 10th Floor, Kolkata - 700 016
Email: himatsingka@hotmail.com   Phone No: 033 - 4067 5050

To,
The Members,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 39th Annual Report on the business and operations of the 
Company and the Audited accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021.

 1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

Your Company’s financial performance for the year under review has been encouraging. Key aspects of 
Consolidated and Standalone Financial Performance of PH Trading Limited for the current financial year 
2020-21 along with the previous financial year 2019-20 are tabulated below:

(` in Lacs except as stated)

PARTICULARS Consolidated Standalone
Year Ended 
March 31, 
2021

Year Ended 
March 31, 
2020

Year Ended 
March 31, 
2021

Year Ended 
March 31, 
2020

Revenue from Operations 593.85 5586.65 207.48 356.59

Other Operating Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Income 6.44 44.62 6.44 0.23

Total Income 600.29 5631.28 213.92 356.82
Operating Expenditure 602.36 6,220.52 219.6 374.88

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and 
Amortization (EBITDA)

(2.07) (589.24) (5.68) (18.06)

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 1.00 1.63 - -

Finance Cost 53.93 91.95 0.09 1.13

Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax (57.00) (682.82) (5.77) (19.19)
Exceptional Items - Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 
(Gain)/Loss

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Profit before Tax (PBT) (57.00) (682.82) (5.77) (19.19)
Tax expense:

Current Year - 4.95 - -

Earlier Year - - - -

Deferred Tax (1.77) 7.77 (0.07) (0.09)

Mat Credit Entitlement - (4.95) - -

Profit After Tax (PAT) (58.77) (690.59) (5.70) (19.10)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Period
(1).Item that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss (70.73) (0.16) (21.21) (0.16)
s(2).Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to Profit or Loss

- -

Total Comprehensive Income for the (129.50) (690.75) (26.91) (19.26)
Balance as per the last Financial Statements (495.63) 195.12 224.60 243.86
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Appropriations
i)   Interim Dividend - - - -

ii)  Proposed Dividend-Final - - - -

iii) Transfer to General Reserve - - - -

iv) Transitional Adjustment on Account of 
      Depreciation

- - - -

Closing Balance of P&L A/c (629.41) (495.63) 197.69 224.60

EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE (Face Value of Rs10 
each)

 i) Basic

 ii) Diluted

(12.24)

(12.24)

(143.87)

(143.87)

(1.19)

(1.19)

(3.98)

(3.98)

 2. DIVIDEND

Your directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March 2021.

 3. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S WORKING DURING THE YEAR/STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIR

  Standalone

During the performance under review, the company’s total revenue is Rs. 2,13,91,926/- as against 
Rs. 3,56,81,525 /- in the previous year. The company has booked loss of Rs  5,77,154/- this year in comparison of 
loss of Rs. 19,19,448  in previous year  Its due to decline in the total expenditure which is due to lockdown policy 
issued by government in regards to COVID -19.

  Consolidated

During the performance under review, the company’s total revenue is Rs. 6,00,29,291 /-. There has been a loss 
before tax of Rs. 56,99,680 /- in comparison of loss Rs 6,82,82,019/- of previous year .Its due to decline in the 
total expenditure which is due to lockdown policy issued by government in regards to COVID -19.

 4. NAME OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BECOME TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES,  
  JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR

Company has disinvested in the wholly owned subsidiary i.e. Dhyaneshwar Traders Private Limited w.e.f 
13th October 2020.

 5. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  
  COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO  
  WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

  • COVID-19 UPDATE

We continue to drive our business on the back of our stated strategy of balanced product mix, diversifi-ed 
distribution, continuous product innovation and reimagining insurance through effective use of technology.

Our business continuity plan was put in motion and duly during this period. The initial focus was to ensure 
safety of our employees and providing seamless service to our existing customer.

• Company has disinvested in the wholly owned subsidiary i.e. Dhyaneshwar Traders Private Limited w.e.f 13th  
   October 2020.
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 6. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR  
  TRIBUNAL IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

Company has applied for revocation of suspension of shares with “The Calcutta stock exchange limited under 
the scheme of Amnesty Scheme -2020,  same has being approved by the exchange w.e.f 16/04/2021. This order 
does not impact on the going concern status of the Company.

 7. DETAILS INRESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE  
  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

Your directors are pleased to inform you that the company’s internal financial controls are suitably designed to 
provide reasonable assurance that the company’s financial statements are reliable and prepared in accordance 
with the provisions of law.

 8. DEPOSITS

The company has never accepted any deposits and as such absolves itself of any compliance in this behalf.

 9. AUDITORS

At the 35th Annual General Meeting M/s H.B. & Associates Chartered Accountants,. (Firm ICAI Registration 
No.322716E) of 24 N.S. Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata-700 001 were appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the 
Company to hold office till the conclusion of 40th Annual General meeting.

In accordance with Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s Kataruka & Co., Chartered Accountants of P-44, 
Rabindra Sarani, Kolkata-700001, Internal Auditors of the Company retires and are eligible for re-appointment.

 10. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to provisions of section 92(3)of the Companies Act, 2013, the details forming part of extract of the 
Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as Annexure- A.

 11. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND  
  OUTGO
Your company has no activity relating to conservation of energy and Technology absorption. The company does 
not have any foreign exchange earnings but company has foreign exchange outgo through import of chemicals.

 12. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The names of companies which have are subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during the year 
under review is provided below:

SL. 
No.

Name of Company Type Remarks Period

1. Dhyaneshwar Traders 
Private Limited

Subsidiary Company Extent of holding -100% 1st April 2020-
12th October 2020

The Consolidated Financial Statements of your Company for the financial year 2020-21 are prepared in 
compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued there under, 
applicable Accounting Standards and the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as the “SEBI Listing Regulations”). The consolidated financial 
statements have been prepared by consolidating audited financial statements of your Company and its 
subsidiaries till 12th October 2020 figures and as approved by the respective Board of Directors. Further, 
pursuant to the proviso of sub section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 a separate statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of 
Subsidiaries of the Company in the prescribed form AOC-1 has been disclosed in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, which forms part of this report.
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The financial statements of the subsidiary companies and related information are available for inspection by 
the members at the Registered Office of your Company during business hours on all days except Saturdays, 
Sundays and public holidays up to the date of the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) as required under Section 
136 of the Companies Act, 2013. Any member desirous of obtaining a copy of the said financial statements may 
write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of your Company.

Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or 
joint ventures

Part - A Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

SL. 
No.

PARTICULARS DETAILS
As on 12th October 2021

1. Name of the subsidiary DHYANESHWAR TRADERS PRIVATE LIMITED

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the holding company’s reporting 
period.

Not Applicable

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant Financial year in the 
case of foreign subsidiaries.

Not Applicable

4.  Share Capital 5,50,000

5. Reserves and Surplus as on 31st March 2021 (7,10,05,775)

6. Total Assets as on 31st March 2021 5,03,78,457

7. Total Liabilities as on 31st March 2021 12,13,84,232

8. Investments ---

9. Turnover 3,86,37,334

10. Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (51,22,526)

11. Provision for taxation ---

12. Profit/(Loss) after taxation (53,07,046)

13. Proposed Dividend ---

14. Extent of shareholding (in percentage)* 100%

• Note - * ceased to be subsidiary w.e.f  13-10-20

Form AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms 
length transactions under third proviso thereto
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:



20

PH TRADING LIMITED
CIN NO: L51109WB1982PLC035011

There were no contracts or arrangements entered in to during the year ended 31st March 2021 , which were not 
arms length basis. 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of 
the related 

party

Nature of 
contracts

Nature of 
relationship

Duration 
of the 

contracts

Salient 
terms

Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board

Amount in INR

Dhyaneshwar 
Traders Pvt 
Ltd. 

Un secured
Loan given

Subsidiary 
Company*

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

2,18,56,264.00

• Note - * ceased to be subsidiary w.e.f  13-10-20

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
M/s PH TRADING LIMITED

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka            Avishek Himatsingka
               (Director)                                                                                                      (Director)
          DIN :00613105                                                                                                     DIN:00613082

Place: Kolkata
Dated:30.06.2021

 13. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

  A) Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

No change in the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

  B)Declaration by an Independent Director(s) and re- appointment, if any

Pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and Quali-fications of Directors) 
Rules, 2014, your Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that they 
meet the ‘Criteria of Independence’ as laid down under Section149(6)of the Act and the Rules made there under.

  C) Formal Annual Evaluation 

Time to time board of directors evaluate their own performance through comparison with each other and take 
decisions of evaluation on annual basis.

 14. BOARD MEETINGS

During the year 2020-21, Seven Board Meetings were convened and held, the details of which are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. The intervening gap between the Meetings 
was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

 15. MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

During the year following shareholders meeting conducted.

 1) 29th September 2020 – Annual General Meeting
 2) 12th October 2020 – Extra Ordinary General Meeting
 3) 14th December 2020 –Extra Ordinary General Meeting
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 16. AUDIT COMMITTEE

As on March 31, 2021 the Audit Committee comprises of following 4 (four) members:

Name Designation Category
Amar Chand Agarwal Chairman Independent Director

Ashok Kumar Rameshwar Lal Jhanwar Director Independent Director

Arati Trivedi Director Independent Director

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka Director Executive director

The Powers and role of the Audit committee are included in Corporate Governance Report forming part of this 
Annual Report.

 17. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The nomination and remuneration Committee has been constituted to formulate and recommend to the Board 
all elements of the Remuneration package of Directors, including perquisites payable to Directors.

The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on 31st March 2021 is as follows:

 Name Designation Category
Amar Chand Agarwal Chairman Independent Director

Ashok Kumar Rameshwar Lal Jhanwar Director Independent Director

Arati Trivedi Director Independent Director

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka Director Executive director

Nomination and remuneration committee takes the decision i.e. by mutual consent, discussion, interview, 
awareness program etc.

 18. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The particular of loans guarantees and investments as per section 186 of the Act by the Company have been 
disclosed in the financial statements.

Company has passed a special resolution at Extra Ordinary General meeting conducted on 14th December 2020 
in pursuant to section 185 of the Companies Act 2013.

 19. PARTICULARS OF CONTACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

All the related party transactions are entered on arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of business and are in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013and the Listing Regulations. The details of 
Related party transactions are provided in the Company’s audited balance sheet (mentioned in notes 29) which 
is accordance with Accountant Standard. 

 20. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

The Company has paid Rs.21,100 p.m. and perquisites to Mr. Tushar S Dave with prescribed sitting fees to the 
Directors.

 Details relating to employee as follows:-

 Name Salary (P.M.)

  Mrs. CS Vritti Todi Choudhary Rs. 10,000/- per month
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During the year under review , the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or 
transactions with the Company , other than setting fees, if any and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them 
for the purpose of attending meeting of the Board /Committee of the Company. 

 21. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Board has appointed Mr. Rajan Singh to conduct Secretarial audit for the financial year ended March 31, 
2021. The Secretarial Audit Report as required under section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed B to 
this report. The Secretarial Auditors’ report does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks.

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF PH TRADING LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

To,
The Members
PH TRADING LIMITED,
Poddar Point, 113 Park St,
Block B, 10th Floor,
Kolkata - 700 016.

I, Rajan Singh, have examined:

 (a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by PH TRADING LIMITED  
  (“the listed entity”),
 (b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,
 (c) website of the listed entity,
 (d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification:

for the year ended March 31, 2021 in respect of compliance with the provisions of:

 (a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines  
  issued thereunder; and
 (b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the Regulations,  
  circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”);

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been examined, 
include: - 

 (a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,  
  2015;
 (b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
 (c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,  
  2011;
 (d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
 (e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;
 (f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008
 (g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preference  
  Shares) Regulations, 2013.
 (h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

and based on the above examination, I hereby report that, during the Review Period:

 (a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines  
  issued thereunder.
 (b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations and  
  circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder insofar as it appears from my examination of those records.



23

PH TRADING LIMITED
CIN NO: L51109WB1982PLC035011

 (c) There are no actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/ material subsidiaries either  
  by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through  
  various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder.
 (d) There are no observations made in the previous report, hence action taken from listed entity was not  
  required

I further report that as represented by the Company and relied upon by me there are adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

CS Rajan Singh
Practising Company Secretary

Membership No.: F10541
CP No.: 13599

UDIN: F010541C000528388

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is attached as Annexure-A and forms an integral 
part of this Report.

Annexure – A
ANNEXURE TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To,
The Members,
PH TRADING LIMITED
CIN:  L51109WB1982PLC035011

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

 a. Maintenance of Statutory and other records are the responsibility of the management of the company. My  
  responsibility is to express an opinion on these records based on my audit. 

 b. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurances  
  about the correctness of the contents of the records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure  
  that correct facts are reflected in records. I believe that the processes and practices I have followed  
  provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 c. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the  
  company. 

 d. The Company was the following system of obtaining reports from other departments to ensure compliance  
  with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines as informed to us.

 e. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is  
  the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on  
  test basis.

 f. The Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or  
  effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

CS Rajan Singh
Practising Company Secretary

Membership No.: F10541
CP No.: 13599

UDIN: F010541C000528388

Place : Konnagar
Date : 28th June 2021

Place : Konnagar
Date : 28th June 2021
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 22. BOARD’S COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION & ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMER MADE  
  BY:

  •Statutory Auditors
 
  Standalone

  One observation made by the Statutory Auditors in their Report are as follows :-

  “We draw attention to Note 28 of the financial statements, as regards an amount of Rs. 1,040/-  
  outstanding towards Investor Education and Protection Fund as on 31.03.2021.”

  Management feedback – Due to technical difficulty same cannot be processed, Management is looking  
  into the matter on priority basis and tries to resolve at the earliest.
  
  Consolidate 

  One observation made by the Statutory Auditors in their Report is as follows:-
  
“We draw attention to Note 29 of the financial statements, as regards an amount of Rs. 1,040/- -outstanding 
towards Investor Education and Protection Fund as on 31.03.2021.”

Management feedback – Due to technical difficulty same cannot be processed, Management is looking into the 
matter on priority basis and tries to resolve at the earliest.

•Cost Auditors

The Cost audit of the Company has not been conducted for the financial year 2020-21 as provisions of Section 
148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable on the Company.

 23. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

The Corporate Governance Certificate is annexed C to this report.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“the Listing Regulations”), the Directors of PH TRADING LIMITED (“the Company”) have pleasure in 
presenting the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021.

1. Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance:

  PH Trading Limited, is committed to implement sound corporate governance practices with a view to bring  
  transparency, accountability and equity in all facts of its operations, maximize shareholders value,  
  maintain a healthy work culture and responsibility towards the society on a continuous basis.

2. Board of Directors:

  Composition & Category of the Board

  As on 31” March 2021, the Board of Directors comprised of 6 (Six) Directors, out of which three directors  
  are Non- Executive Independent Directors. The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is  
  in conformity with the Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). The composition and  
  the category of Directors during the captioned period, to which this Report belongs, is as under:



25

PH TRADING LIMITED
CIN NO: L51109WB1982PLC035011

SL. 
NO.

NAME DESIGNATION CATEGORY

1. Prakash Chandra Himatsingka Whole-Time Director Executive Director (Chairman of the 
Company)

2. Avishek Himatsingka Director Promoter, Executive Director

3. Tushar S Dave Director Executive Director

4. Amar Chand Agarwal Independent Director Non-Executive Director

5. Ashok Kumar Rameshwar Lal Jhanwar Independent Director Non-Executive Director

6. Arati Trivedi Women Independent 
Director

Non-Executive Director

The Independent Directors are from different fields of work such as finance, marketing, etc. The Chairman 
and Managing Directors have been delegated clearly defined responsibilities. The Company’s Board meets at 
frequent and regular intervals for planning, assessing and evaluating important business.

Number of Board Meetings held

Seven Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2020-21. The intervening period between two board 
meetings was well within the gap of four months prescribed under Regulation 17(2) of the Listing Regulations 
and the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of the Board Meeting are as under:-

Sl. No. Dates Board Strength No. of Directors present
1. 15/05/2020 6 5

2. 23/06/2020 6 6

3. 27/07/2020 6 5

4. 14/09/2020 6 6

5. 20/10/2020 6 4

6. 12/11/2020 6 5

7. 11/02/2021 6 6

Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings, last Annual General Meeting (AGM) and number of other 
directorships and Chairmanship/Membership of each Director in various Companies as on 31st March 2021 is 
as under:-

Name of Director Category No. of 
shares
held

No. of 
Board 
Meetings 
attended

Last 
AGM 
attended

Directorship 
held in 
other Indian 
Companies

Other Committee 
positions held in 
Indian Public Limited 
Companies
As 
Chairman

As
Member

Prakash Chandra
Himatsingka

Executive 
Director

Nil 7 Yes Five None None

Avishek 
Himatsingka

Promoter, 
Executive 
Director

290950 7 Yes Three None None
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Tushar S Dave Executive 
Director

Nil 5 No Three None None

Amar Chand 
Agarwal

Non 
Executive 
Independent 
Director

Nil 7 Yes Three None None

Ashok Kumar 
Rameshwar Lal 
Jhanwar

Non 
Executive 
Independent 
Director

Nil 4 No One None None

Arati Trivedi Non 
Executive 
Independent 
Director

Nil 7 No None None None

Directors Retiring by Rotation

As per the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013, Shri Avishek Himatsingka, Director of the 
Company, retire by rotation, at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.
Independent Directors

All the Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed as per the provisions of the Act and 
the Listing Regulations. None of the Directors on the Board serve as an Independent Director in more than 
seven listed companies. During the year under review, one meeting of Independent Directors of the Company 
without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of management was held as required under 
Schedule IV of the Act (Code of Independent Directors) and Regulation 25(3) of the Listing Regulations. At their 
meeting, the Independent Directors reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as 
a whole, Chairman (as elected by the Board for each meeting of the Board of Directors) after taking the views of 
Executive Director(s) and Non-Executive Directors and also assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow 
of information between the Company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively 
and reasonably perform their duties.

3. Committees of the Board

The Company has the following statutory committees of the Board:

A) AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition, Name of the Member and the Chairman
 
In terms of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of 
Directors of the Company has constituted an Audit Committee of four Directors out of which three directors 
are Non-Executive and Independent Directors. The composition of Audit Committee, as on 31st March 2021 
comprised of:

Name Designation Category
Amar Chand Agarwal Chairman Independent Director

Ashok Kumar Rameshwar Lal 
Jhanwar

Director Independent Director

Arati Trivedi Director Independent Director

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka Director Executive Director

The minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee are circulated to all the Member of the Board along with 
the agenda.
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a. The Audit Committee has the following powers

 1. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference
 2. To seek information from any employee
 3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice
 4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

b. The role of Audit Committee includes the following:

The role of the Audit committee includes the following:

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to  
  ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible.
2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company.
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.
4. Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors report thereon before  
  submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to.
 (i) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s  
  Report in terms of Clause (C) of sub section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013
 (ii) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.
 (iii) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.
 (iv) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.
 (v) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.
 (vi) Disclosure of any related party transactions and
 (vii) Qualifications in the draft audit report
5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for  
  approval.
6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue  
  (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than  
  those stated in the offer document/prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency  
  monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations  
  to the Board to take up steps in this matter.

7. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit  
  process.
8. Approval of any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; Explanation.
9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.
10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary.
11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.
12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of Statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the  
  internal control systems.
13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit  
  department. staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage  
  and frequency of internal audit.
14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on.
15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there  
  is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting  
  the matter to the Board.
16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as  
  well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.
17. Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to depositors, debenture holders,  
  shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.
18. Reviewing the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.
19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the  
  finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and  
  background, etc. of the candidate.
20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
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Attendance of the members of the Audit Committee Meetings:

During the current Financial Year 2020-21, the Audit Committee met 4 (four) times which is stated as follows:

Sl. No. Dates Committee Strength No. of Directors Present
1. 27/07/2020 4 3

2. 14/09/2020 4 4

3. 12/11/2020 4 4

4. 11/02/2021 4 4

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition, Name of the Member and the Chairman

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted to formulate and recommend to the Board 
all elements of the Remuneration package of Directors, including perquisites payable to Directors.

In terms of Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of 
Directors of the Company has constituted this Committee comprising Three Non-Executive and Independent 
Directors and One Executive Director. The composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee as on 31st 
March 2021 is as follows:

Name Designation Category
Amar Chand Agarwal Chairman Independent Director

Ashok Kumar Rameshwar Lal Jhanwar Director Independent Director

Arati Trivedi Director Independent Director

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka Director Executive Director

The Minutes of the meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are circulated to all the Member 
of the Board along with the Agenda.

Attendance of the members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

During the current Financial Year 2020-21, one Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held and the 
details of the meetings is as follows:

Sl. No. Dates Committee Strength No. of directors present
1. 11/02/2021 4 4

REMUNERATION PAID TO THE DIRECTORS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20

Name Category Salary and 
perquisite 
(Rs)

Sitting 
fee (Rs) 
per 
meeting

Total 
(Rs)

Avishek Himatsingka Promoter, Executive Director Nil 250 1750

Amar Chand Agarwal Non Executive Independent Director Nil 250 1750

Ashok Kumar Rameshwar 
Lal Jhanwar

Non Executive Independent Director Nil 250 1000

Arati Trivedi Non Executive Independent Director Nil 250 1750
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Tushar Suresh Dave Executive Director, C.E.O 21,100 pm 250 254450

C.  STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Composition, Name of the Member and the Chairman

In terms of Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations and Section178 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company has duly constituted the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee with four members out of which two 
are Executive Directors and two are Non-Executive Independent Directors, where the Non-Executive Independent 
Director is the Chairperson.

The composition of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee as on 31st March 2021 is as follows:

Name Designation Category
Amar Chand Agarwal Chairman Independent Director

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka Member Executive Director 

Avishek Himatsingka Member Executive Director

Ashok Kumar Rameshwar Lal Jhanwar Member Independent Director
Shareholders Complaints Status:

Opening Nil

Number of shareholders complaints received during the year under review 1

Number of complaints not resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders Nil

Number of pending share transfer applications on 31 March 2021 Nil

Name and Designation of Compliance Officer:

Smt. Vritti Todi Choudhary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

4.  GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The details of date, location and time of the last three Annual General Meeting held are as under:

Financial Year Location Date Time Special Resolution
2017-18 113 Park Street 

Poddar Point 
Kolkata - 700 016

19/09/2018 4.00 P.M. Nil

2018-19 113 Park Street 
Poddar Point 
Kolkata - 700 016

24/09/2019 4.00 P.M. Nil

2019-20 113 Park Street 
Poddar Point 
Kolkata - 700 016

29/09/2020 4.00 P.M. 3 special resolution 
passed

Postal Ballot

One resolution was passed by way of postal ballot by the Company during the Financial Year 2020-21 at EGM 
conducted on 12/10/2020.

5. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The quarterly/half-yearly/annual financial results are published in accordance with Regulation 47 of the Listing 
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Regulations in one English language national daily newspaper circulating in the whole or substantially the 
whole of India and one daily newspaper published in the Bengali language. The quarterly/half-yearly/annual 
financial results are also displayed on the Company’s website, viz., http://phtradinglimited.com.

The company shall intimate and publish the results, shareholding pattern etc. as per the Listing Regulations, 
subsequent to the listing of the company.

6.  GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

 a) Annual General Meeting

Annual General Meeting 
(2021)

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company will be held at the 
Registered Office of the Company situated at 113, Park Street, Poddar Point, 
Kolkata - 700 016 on Thursday, 30th September 2021 at 4.00 pm

Financial Calendar 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021

Dividend Payment Date No Dividend declared during the Financial Year

Listing on Stock 
Exchange and Stock 
Code

The Company’s shares are listed on:
1. BSE Limited (Stock Code: 512026)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal St, Kala Ghoda, Fort, Mumbai, 
Maharashtra - 400 001

2. The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited 
(Stock Code: 22046)
7, Lyons Range, Murgighata, Dalhousie, Kolkata, West Bengal - 700 001

ISIN No for CDSL INE603D01017

ISIN No for NSDL INE603D01017

Share Transfer System The Company has appointed Registrar and Shareholder Transfer Agent to 
monitor the share transfer

Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent

Niche Technologies Private Limited
3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata -  700 017, West Bengal
Tel:- +91 33 22357270/22357271
Fax:- +91 33 22156823
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Distribution of Shareholding as at 31st March, 2021

 • According to Category of Holding:

Shareholders As on 31st March, 2021 As on 31st March, 2020
No. of Shares % No. of Shares %

Promoters 314950 65.61 314950 65.61

Financial Institutions - - - -

Private Corporate Bodies (Excluding Promoters) - - - --

Public 165050 34.39 165050 34.39

Total 480000 100.00 480000 100.00

 • According to Number of Shares held:

Shareholding 
Range

No. of shareholders No. of shares % of Shareholding

1-500 25 4540 0.95%

501-10,00 0 0 0%

1001-5000 1 1400 0.29%

5001-10000 3 25000 5.21%

10001 -50000 9 158110 32.94%

50001-100000 0 0 0

100001 and above 1 290,950 60.61%

Total 38 480000 100%

Dematerialisation of shares:

As stated earlier, the Company’ shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. As per the SEBI notifications, trading 
in Company’s shares has been made compulsorily in dematerialized form w.e.f. 26th December, 2000 and 
Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agent have established connectivity with NSDL & CDSL and the process of 
getting shares converted to equity and tradable is under process. The shares held by Promoters and Promoter 
Group are in dematerialized form. Subsequent to the IPO, all trading in equity shares is permitted only in 
dematerialized form, as per notification issued by SEBI. 
 
Address for Correspondence:

PH TRADING LIMITED
Poddar Point, 113 Park Street, 
Block B, 10th Floor
Kolkata - 700 016
Contact: (033) 4067 5050/ 2229 9536/2226 8993
Email: phtradinglimited@gmail.com

7. OTHER DISCLOSURES

 (i) Related-Party Transactions:

Materially-significant related party transactions with the Promoters, the Directors, the management or their 
relatives that may have potential conflict with the Interest of the Company at large, re disclosed in the Notes 
to the Accounts.  
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There have been no penalties or strictures imposed on the Companies by the stock exchanges, SEBI or any 
statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

(ii) Details of Non- Compliances

There are no non-compliance by the Company and no penalties or strictures have imposed on the Company by 
the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to Capital Markets, during the last 
three years.

(iii) Whistle-Blower Policy

The Company Promoters ethical behavior in all the business activities and has put in place or mechanism for 
reporting illegal and unethical behavior Employees are free to report violations of law, rules, regulations or 
unethical conduct to their immediate superior / notified person. The Directors and senior management are 
obliged to maintain confidentiality of such reporting and ensure that the whistle-blowers are not subjected to 
any discriminatory practices.

(iv) Certificate from Practising Company Secretary regarding non-disqualification of appointed or 
continuing directors

The Company has duly received a certificate from Mr. Rajan Singh, Practising Company Secretary, stating that 
none of the directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

(v) Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013

During the year under review, no complaints of sexual harassment were filed, disposed of or pending.

(vi) Total fees for all services paid to the Statutory Auditor

    The amount paid to M/s. H.B. & ASSOCIATES as Statutory Audit fees is Rs. 47,200/-

(vii) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement 
as specified under Regulation 32 (7A)

No preferential allotment was made by the Company during the financial year under review.

DECLARATION BY WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR

Certificate from Shri Prakash Chandra Himatsingka, Executive Director, of the company, as per Regulation 17(8) 
and Schedule V of the Listing Regulations for the year under review was placed with the Board of Directors of 
the Company in their meeting held on 27th April, 2021. A copy of the certificate is given along with this report. 

DECLARATION BY THE WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR

I, Shri Prakash Chandra Himatsingka, Whole-Time Director of PH Trading Limited, hereby declare that all the 
members of the Board of Directors and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the 
Code of Conduct, applicable to them as laid down by the Board of Directors in terms of Regulation 26(3) of the 
Listing Regulations for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

For PH Trading Limited

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka
Whole-Time Director
DIN: 00613105
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  24. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY OF THE COMPANY

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the companies Act 2013 is not applicable upon the company.

 25. ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY

The company is conscious of clean environment and safe operations. It ensures safety of all concerned, 
compliance with environmental regulations and preservation of natural resources.As required by the sexual 
Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, prohibition &Redressal) Act 2013, the company has an internal 
policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace with mechanism of lodging complaints. During the year 
under review, no complaints were reported to the board.

 26. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, shall state that -
 (a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along  
  with proper explanation relating to material departures;
 (b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments  
  and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of  
  the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;
 (c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records  
  in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing  
  and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
 (d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
 (e) the directors, have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such  
  internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.
 (f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws  
  and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

 27. VOTING THORUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules made there under 
and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, your Company has taken necessary steps to make 
available the facility provide to its members the facility to exercise their right to vote by Electronic means for 
the transactions which require approval through Postal Ballot.

 28. LISTING OF SHARES

During the period under review the Shares of the company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE 
Ltd) and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE).

Company has applied for Voluntary delisting of shares with The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited without giving 
an exit option to shareholders in terms of regulations 6(a) and 7 of SEBI (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009. Approval pending for the same.

 29. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We acknowledge the contribution of all staff members without whose help, cooperation and hard work the 
Company would not have been able to achieve the results.

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 30th June, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of 
M/S PH Trading Limited

(Prakash Chandra Himatsingka)
Director

DIN : 00613105

(Avishek Himatsingka)
Director

DIN : 00613082
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FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2021
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN L51109WB1982PLC035011

2 Registration Date 25.06.1982

3 Name of the Company PH TRADING LTD.

4 Category/Sub-category of the Company PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY.

5 Address of the Registered office  & con-
tact details

113, PARK STREET, B-BLOCK, 10TH FLOOR, 
KOLKATA - 700 016. PHONE: 4067 5050, FAX : 4067 5049.

6 Whether listed company YES.

7 Name, Address & contact details of the 
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

NICHE TECHNOLOGIES PVT. LTD.,
3A,Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A &7B, 
KOLKATA- 700 017,West Bengal
PHONE: +91 33 22357270/22357171
FAX: +91 33 22156823

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % or  
  more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of main 
products / services

NIC Code of the Product/
service

%  to total turnover of the com-
pany

1 Soda Ash Light N.A. 62%

2 Sodium Bicarbonate N.A. 34%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE  COMPANIES 

Sl. 
No.

Name & Address of 
the Company

CIN/GLN HOLDING/
SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

HOLDING/
SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

APPLICABLE 
SECTION

1 DHYANESHWAR 
TRADERS PVT LTD.*

U51909WB2014PTC202428 SUBSIDIARY 100% 2(87)

Note - * ceased to be subsidiary w.e.f 13-10-20
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of 
the year[As on 31-March-2019]

No. of Shares held at the end of the 
year[As on 31-March-2020 ]

% 
Change
during
the year

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Individual/ 
HUF

290950 - 290950 60.61 290950 - 290950 60.61 No 
Change

b) Central Govt - - - --- --- - --- --- -----

c) State Govt(s) - - - --- --- - --- --- -----

d) Bodies Corp. 24000 - 24000 5.00 24000 - 24000    5.00 No 
change

e) Banks / FI - - --- --- --- - --- --- ---- 

f) Any other - - --- --- --- - --- --- ---

Total 
shareholding 
of Promoter (A)

314950 - 314950 65.61 314950 - 314950 65.61 No 
Change

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions

a) Mutual 
Funds

- - - - - - - - -

b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -

d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -

e) Venture 
Capital Funds

- - - - - - - - -

f) Insurance 
Companies

- - - - - - - - -

g) FIIs - - - - - - - - -

 h) Foreign 
Venture Capital 
Funds

- - - - - - - - -

i) Others 
(specify)

- - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)
(1):-

- - - - - - - - -
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2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian 23710 57600 81310 16.94 23710 57600 81310 16.94  No 
Change

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital upto Rs. 
1 lakh

300 20240 20540 4.28 600 19940 20540 4.28 No 
Change

ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh

20000 43200 63200 13.17 43200 20000 63200 13.17 No 
Change

c) Others 
(specify)

Non Resident 
Indians

Overseas 
Corporate 
Bodies

Foreign 
Nationals

Clearing 
Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies 
- D R

Sub-total (B)
(2):-

44010 121040 165050 34.39 67510 97540 165050 34.39 No 
Change

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)
(2)

44010 121040 165050 34.39 67510 97540 165050 34.39 No 
Change

C. Shares held 
by Custodian 
for GDRs & 
ADRs
Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

358960 121040 480000 100.00 382460 97540 480000 100.00 No 
Change
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 B) Shareholding of Promoter

Sl. 
No.

Shareholder’s 
Name

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year

Shareholding at the end of the 
year

% 
change 
in 
share-
holding 
during 
the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 
company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total 
shares

7 AVISHEK 
HIMATSINGKA

290950 60.61 0.00 290950 60.61 0.00   No 
Change 

10 VARIABLE PLAZA 
PVT.LTD.

24000 5.00 0.00 24000 5.00 0.00   No 
Change

TOTAL 314950 65.61 314950 65.61

 C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company
1 At the beginning of the 

year
314950 65.61 314950 65.61

2 Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment /transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

No Change No Change

3 At the end of the year 314950 65.61 314950 65.61
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 D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: 
      (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl. 
No.

For Each of the 
Top 10
Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the Year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the
company

1 BASUDEO PRASAD YADUKA
At the beginning of 
the year

23200 4.83 23200 4.83

Date wise Increase 
/ Decrease other 
than Promoters 
Shareholding 
during the year 
specifying the 
reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/ bonus/ sweat 
equity etc):

 No Change

At the end of the 
year

23200 4.83 23200 4.83

2 ASHTIVINAYAK TRADERS PVT LTD
At the beginning of 
the year

18000 3.75 18000 3.75

Date wise Increase 
/ Decrease other 
than Promoters 
Shareholding 
during the year 
specifying the 
reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/ bonus/ sweat 
equity etc):

No Change

At the end of the 
year

18000 3.75 18000 3.75

3 SUKARMA COMMERCE PVT LTD
At the beginning of 
the year

18000 3.75 18000 3.75
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Date wise Increase 
/ Decrease other 
than Promoters 
Shareholding 
during the year 
specifying the 
reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/ bonus/ sweat 
equity etc):

No Change

At the end of the 
year

18000 3.75 18000 3.75

4 CHITTARMAL AGARWAL
At the beginning of 
the year

10000 2.08 10000 2.08

Date wise Increase 
/ Decrease other 
than Promoters 
Shareholding 
during the year 
specifying the 
reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/ bonus/ sweat 
equity etc):

No Change

At the end of the 
year

10000 2.08 10000 2.08

5 PRANESH TRAD-
ERS PVT. LTD.

9000 1.88 9000 1.88

At the beginning of 
the year

0 0 0 0

Date wise Increase 
/ Decrease other 
than Promoters 
Shareholding 
during the year 
specifying the 
reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/ bonus/ sweat 
equity etc):

No Change

At the end of the 
year

9000 1.88 9000 1.88
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6 GHANSHYAM DAS YADUKA
At the beginning of 
the year

20000 4.17 20000 4.17

Date wise Increase 
/ Decrease other 
than Promoters 
Shareholding 
during the year 
specifying the 
reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/ bonus/ sweat 
equity etc):

No Change

At the end of the 
year

20000 4.17 20000 4.17

7 PRADHAN DEALERS PRIVATE LIMITED
At the beginning of 
the year

12600 2.63 12600 2.63

Date wise Increase 
/ Decrease other 
than Promoters 
Shareholding 
during the year 
specifying the 
reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/ bonus/ sweat 
equity etc):

No Change

At the end of the 
year

12600 2.63 12600 2.63

8 MARKS N GLIX AUTOMOTIVES PVT LTD.
At the beginning of 
the year

12000 2.50 12000 2.50

Date wise Increase 
/ Decrease other 
than Promoters 
Shareholding 
during the year 
specifying the 
reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/ bonus/ sweat 
equity etc):

No Change

At the end of the 
year

12000 2.50 12000 2.50
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9 MARKS N GLIX 
MOTORS PVT LTD.

11710 2.44 11710 2.44

At the beginning of 
the year

0 0 0 0

Date wise Increase 
/ Decrease other 
than Promoters 
Shareholding 
during the year 
specifying the 
reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/ bonus/ sweat 
equity etc):

No Change

At the end of the 
year

11710 2.44 11710 2.44

10 B. P. YADUKA (HUF)
At the beginning of 
the year

20000 4.17 20000 4.17

Date wise Increase 
/ Decrease other 
than Promoters 
Shareholding 
during the year 
specifying the 
reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/ bonus/ sweat 
equity etc):

No Change

At the end of the 
year

20000 4.17 20000 4.17
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 E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding of each 
Directors and each Key 
Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the Year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the
company

1 AVISHEK HIMATSINGKA
At the beginning of the 
year

290950 60.61 290950 60.61

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase /decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

- - - -

No Change

At the end of the year 290950 60.61 290950 60.61

V) INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for  
  payment.

Secured 
Loans 
excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebted-
ness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial 
year
i) Principal Amount 0 0 0 0

ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0

Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
* Addition 0 0 0 0

* Reduction 0 0 0 0

Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 0 0 0 0

ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0

Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0 0
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

  A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 
Amount

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

 0 0 0 0 0

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) In-
come-tax Act, 1961

 0 0 0 0 0

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

 0 0 0 0 0

2 Stock Option  0 0 0 0 0

3 Sweat Equity  0 0 0 0 0

4 Commission

 - as % of profit
 - others, specify

 0 0 0 0 0

5 Others, please specify  0 0 0 0 0

Total (A)  0 0 0 0 0

Ceiling as per the Act

  B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 
Amount

1 Independent Directors Amar Chand Agarwal

Fee for attending board commit-
tee meetings

1750 1750

Commission  0  0

Others, please specify  0  0

Total (1) 1750 1750

2 Independent Directors Arati Trivedi

Fee for attending board commit-
tee meetings

1750 1750

Commission 0 0

Others, please specify 0 0

Total (2) 1750 1750

3 Independent Directors Ashok Kumar Jhanwar

Fee for attending board commit-
tee meetings

1000 1000

Commission  0  0

Others, please specify (salary)  0  0



44

PH TRADING LIMITED
CIN NO: L51109WB1982PLC035011

Total (4)

Total (B)=(1+2+3+4)

Total Managerial Remuneration 1000 1000

Overall Ceiling as per the Act
 
  C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

CEO
Executive Directors

CS Executive Directors

Tushar S Dave Avishek Himatsingka

1 Gross salary   0

(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961

253200 119333 0

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961

 0  0 0

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 
1961

 0  0 0

2 Stock Option  0  0 0

3 Sweat Equity  0  0 0

4 Commission  0  0 0

-  as % of profit PBT AND
REMUNERATION

 0  0 0

others, specify…  0  0 0

5 Others, please specify (meeting 
fees)

1250  0 1750

Total 254450 119333 1750
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the 
Companies Act

Brief
Description

Details of 
Penalty / 
Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority
[RD / NCLT/ 
COURT]

Appeal made,
if any (give 
Details)

A. COMPANY NIL
Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS NIL
Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER 
OFFICERS IN 
DEFAULT

NIL

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of PH Trading Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone IND AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of PH Trading Limited (‘‘the Company’’), which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, and the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial Statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid   
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and loss, changes in equity and its cash flows 
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
 
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 28 of the financial statements, as regards an amount of Rs. 1,040/- outstanding 
towards Investor Education and Protection Fund as on 31.03.2021.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, and Shareholder’s 
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
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in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant of the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 • Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to  
  fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence  
  that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material  
  misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve  
  collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 • Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures  
  that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are  
  also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial  
  controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

 • Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting  
  estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 • Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,  
  based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or  
  conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If  
  we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s  
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  report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to  
  modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our  
  auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a  
  going concern.

 • Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the  
  disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in  
  a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
 
 1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central  
  Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give  
  in the Annexure- “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the  
  extent applicable.

 2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

      (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge  
  and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it  
  appears from our examination of those books.

 (c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow  
  Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts. 

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting  
  Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting  
  Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

 (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken  
  on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from  
  being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company  
  and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure –B”.

 (g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of  
  the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and  
  according to the explanations given to us:
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 (i)  The Company does not have any pending litigation as at 31.03.2021 which would impact its financial  
   position.

 (ii)  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were  
   any material foreseeable losses.

 (iii) An amount of Rs. 1,040/- is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund  
   by the Company.

For H.B. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm ICAI Reg. No.- 0322716E

H S Senapati
Membership No:054660

UDIN: 21054660AAAAIP1698

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of even date)

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and explanations 
given to us, we state that:

 i. The Company does not hold any fixed assets as on 31.03.2021. So, the comment of this clause is not  
  applicable.

 ii. As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified during the year at reasonable interval by  
  the Management, which in our opinion is reasonable and discrepancies which were noticed have been  
  properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

 iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted advances to its  
  wholly owned subsidiary covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,  
  2013. The maximum amount involved during the year was ` 2,18,77,236/-. The Company ceased o be a  
  wholly owned subsidiary w.e.f. 13.10.2020.

  a. In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans had been  
   granted to the Firm listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act were not, prima  
   facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

  b. In the case of the loans granted to the Parties listed in the register maintained under section 189  
   of the Act, the borrowers have been regular in the payment of the principal as stipulated.

  c. There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loan granted to a Firm listed in the register  
   maintained under section 189 of the Act.

 iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has  
  complied with provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,2013 in respect of loans,  
  investments, guarantees and security made, wherever applicable.

 v. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no such deposits accepted by the  
  Company, for which directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to  
  76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and the rules framed there under, are  
  applicable.

Place: Kolkata   
Date: 30-06-2021
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

 vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section  
  (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, comment on clause (vi) of the said order does  
  not arise.

 vii. (a)  According to the records of the Company and as per the information and explanations given to us,  
   the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,  
   Employee’s State Insurance, Goods and Services tax, Income tax, Sales tax, Duty of Custom, Cess  
   and any other statutory dues as applicable to the appropriate authorities during the year. According  
   to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed statutory dues were outstanding as  
   at 31st March, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
  
  (b)  There are no dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of custom or duty of excise or value    
   added tax or cess on account of any dispute.

 viii. On the basis of records examined by us and the information and explanations given to us, the Company  
   has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial Institution, banks, Government or  
   dues to debenture holders.

 ix. The Company has not raised any money by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public Offer (including  
  debt instruments) and term loan during the year. Hence, the comment on the clause (ix) of the said  
  order does not arise.

 x. According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company  
  by its Officers or Employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

 xi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records  
  of the Company, Managerial remuneration has been paid/provided by the Company in accordance with  
  the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

 xii. The Company is not a Nidhi company as specified in the Nidhi Rules, 2014. Hence, comment on clause  
  (xii) of the said order does not arise.

 xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the  
   records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177  
   and 188 of the Act where applicable and such transactions have been disclosed in the financial  
   statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

 xiv.  The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or, fully or partly  
   convertible debentures during the year. Hence, comment on the clause (xiv) of the said order does not  
   arise.

 xv.  To the best of our knowledge and belief and as per the information and explanations given to us, the  
   Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with  
   him. Hence, comment on the clause (xv) of the said order does not arise.

 xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,  
   1934.

For H.B. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 0322716E

H S Senapati
Membership No: 054660

UDIN: 21054660AAAAIP1698Place: Kolkata   
Date: 30-06-2021
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ANNEXURE `B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to Paragraph 2 (f) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of even 
date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PH Trading Limited (“the Company”) 
as of 31st March, 2021, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the INS AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
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expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
31st March, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For H.B. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 0322716E

H S Senapati
Membership No: 054660

UDIN: 21054660AAAAIP1698
Place: Kolkata
Date: 30-06-2021
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)

Particulars Note 
No.

As at
31-03-2021

As at
31-03-2020

I ASSETS:

Non - Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets

 (i)  Investments 3(i)  -    2.73 

 (ii) Other Financial Assets 3(ii)  0.02  0.02 

(B) Deferred Tax Assets 4  0.10  0.09 

 0.12  2.84 

Current Assets
(a) Inventories 5  0.05  0.05 

(b) Financial Assets

 (i)   Trade Receivables 6(i)  0.10  -   

 (ii)  Cash and Cash Equivalents 6(ii)  0.05  0.05 

 (iii) Other Bank Balances 6(iii)  0.00  0.00 

 (iv) Other Financial Assets 6(iv)  21.86  21.89 

(c) Current Tax Assets (net) 7  2.72  2.61 

(d) Other Current Assets 8  3.86  11.11 

 28.64  35.71 

Total  28.75  38.54 

Particulars Note 
No.

As at
31-03-2021

As at
31-03-2020

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:

Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 9  4.80  4.80 

(b) Other Equity 10  19.77  22.46 

 24.57  27.26 

LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 11  0.37  0.35 

Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

 (i)  Trade Payables 12(i)

       Total of outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises

       Total of outstanding dues of enterprises other than Micro  
       and Small

 0.11  0.14 
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)

Particulars Note 
No.

For the year 
ended

31-03-2021

For the year 
ended

31-03-2020
 (I)    Revenue From Operations 14  20.75  35.66 

 (II)   Other Income 15  0.64  0.02 

 (III)  Total Revenue (I + II)  21.39  35.68 

 (IV)  Expenses: 

   Purchase of Traded Goods 16  19.31  35.94 

   Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-
   progress and Stock-in-Trade

17  -    -   

   Employee Benefits Expense 18  0.54  0.47 

   Finance Cost 19  0.01  0.11 

   Other Expenses 20  2.10  1.08 

 (V)   Total Expenses  21.97  37.60 

 (VI)  Profit/(Loss) before Tax (III - V)  (0.58)  (1.92)

 (VII) Tax Expense:
   (1) Current Tax - -

   Less: Mat credit entitlement - -

   (2) Net Current Tax - -

   (3) Deferred Tax  (0.01)  (0.01)

   (4) Income Tax for Earlier Years  -    -   

 (VIII) Profit/(Loss) for the Period (VI- VII)  (0.57)  (1.91)

 (ii) Other Financial Liabilities 12(ii)  3.70  3.70 

(b) Other Current Liabilities 13  0.00  7.10 

 4.19  11.29 

Total  28.75  38.54 

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes         1-2
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statement as per our report of even date 
attached.

For  H.B. & ASSOCIATES                     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm ICAI Reg. No. 0322716E

H. S. SENAPATI
M. NO. 054660

Place :  Kolkata
Date   : 30-06-2021

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka
Avishek Himatsingka

Directors
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 (IX)   Other Comprehensive Income for the period
 (A)    (i) Item that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss  (2.13)  (0.02)

    (ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be  
    reclassified to Profit or Loss

 0.01  -   

 (B)    (i) Item that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss  -    -   

    (ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified  
    to Profit or Loss

 -    -   

Total  (2.12)  (0.02)

 (X)   Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VIII+IX)  (2.69)  (1.93)

 (XI)  Earning per Equity Share 25
   Basic  (1.19)  (3.98)

   Diluted  (1.19)  (3.98)

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statement
As per our report of even date attached.

For  H.B. & ASSOCIATES                     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm ICAI Reg. No. 0322716E
   
H. S. SENAPATI
M. NO. 054660

Place :  Kolkata
Date   : 30-06-2021

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka
Avishek Himatsingka

Directors
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

Particulars For the year 
ended

31.03.2021

For the year 
ended

31.03.2020
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
 Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax & Extra-Ordinary Items  (0.58)  (1.92)

 Less:Prior Period Items  -    -   

 Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax & Extra-Ordinary Items  (0.58)  (1.92)

 Adjustment for : 
 Depreciation  -    -   

 Assets discarded during the year  -   

 Rental income  -   
 Interest Expenses  0.01  0.11 

 Dividend Income  -   

 Provision for Gratuity  0.01  0.04 

 Interest Income  (0.62)  -   

 Fair Value Measurement of Employee Benefit   -    -   

 (Profit)/Loss on Sale of Mutual fund  -    -   

 (Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  -   

 Investments written off  -    -   

 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  (1.18)  (1.77)

 Movements In Working Capital  : 
 Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  (0.03)  (1.77)

 Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  (7.10)  (1.36)

 (Increase)/Decrease in Trade recievable  (0.10)  16.12 

 (Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets  0.03  (10.94)

 (Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets  7.26  (0.35)

 (Increase)/Decrease in Other financial liabilities  -    (0.06)

 (Increase)/Decrease in Other non current asset  -    0.00 

 Cash generated from/(used in) Operations  (1.11)  (0.13)

 Direct Taxes Paid (Net)  (0.11)  (1.32)

 Net Cash from Operating Activities  (1.22)  (1.45)
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B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:  -   

 Dividend Received  -   
 Rent received  -  -   

 Interest Received  0.62    -   

 Maturity of fixed deposit -  -   

 Sale of Investment 2.73
 Profit/Loss on Sale of Investment (2.13)  -   

 Net Cash from Investing Activities 1.22 -

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 Interest paid  (0.01)  (0.11)

 Dividend Paid  -    -   

 Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings  -    -   

 Net Cash from Financing Activities  (0.01)  (0.11)

 Net (Decrease)/ Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (0.01)  (1.56)

 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year  0.05  1.61 

 Cash Transferred on Account of Scheme of Arrangement  -    -   

 Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year  0.05  0.05 

Cash & Cash Equivalents :
Balances with Bank 
Current Account  0.05  0.05 

Cash-on-Hand  0.01  0.00 

Total  0.05  0.05 

Note:

 (a)  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/recasted wherever necessary.
 
 (b) The above cash flow has been prepared under “Indirect Method” as prescribed under Indian Accounting  
  Standard(Ind AS) 7 -”Statements Of Cash Flows” as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies  
  Act 2013, as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015,   
  Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Ammendment  Rules, 2016 and other Accounting Principles  
  Generally Accepted in India.

For  H.B. & ASSOCIATES                     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm ICAI Reg. No. 0322716E

Place :  Kolkata
Date   : 30-06-2021

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka
Avishek Himatsingka

Directors
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(A) Equity Share Capital

Particulars Notes Number Amount (`)

At 31st March, 2020  12.00  4,80,000.00  4.80 
Issued during the year 2020-21  -    -   
At 31st March, 2021  12.00  4,80,000.00  4.80 

(B) Other Equity

Particulars Items of OCI Total (`)
Retained
Earnings

Net Gain / (Loss) 
on FVTOCI

Balance as on 31st March, 2019  24.52  (0.13)  24.39 
Adjustment on Account of Demerger  -    -    -   
Profit / (Loss) for the year  (1.91)  -    (1.91)
Net Gain / (Loss) on FVTOCI  -    (0.02)  (0.02)
Balance as on 31st March, 2020  22.61  (0.15)  22.46 
Adjustment on Account of Demerger  -    -   

Profit / (Loss) for the year  (0.57)  -    (0.57)
Net Gain / (Loss) on FVTOCI  -    (2.12)  (2.12)
Balance as on 31st March, 2021  22.04  (2.27)  19.77 

As per our report of even date

For  H.B. & ASSOCIATES                     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm ICAI Reg. No. 0322716E 
  

Place :  Kolkata
Date   : 30-06-2021

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka
Avishek Himatsingka

Directors
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

 1. Corporate Information

 PH Trading Limited (the Company) having CIN No.- L51109WB1982PLC035011 and its registered  
 office at 113, Poddar Point,Park Street, Block B,10th Floor,Kolkata - 700 016, India is a Public Limited  
 Company incorporated and domiciled in India. . 
 
 2.1. Basis of Preparation

 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting  
 Standards (Ind AS) notified under The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (the Rules). 
 
 2.2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
  
 Basis of classification of Current and non-current

 Assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet have been classified as either current or non–current based  
 upon the requirements of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
 An asset has been classified as current if (a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or  
 consumption in the Company’s normal operating cycle; or (b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being  
 traded; or (c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or (d) it is cash  
 or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least  
 twelve months after the reporting date. All other assets have been classified as non–current. 
 
 A liability has been classified as current when (a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal  
 operating cycle; or (b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or (c) it is due to be settled  
 within twelve months after the reporting date; or (d) the Company does not have an unconditional right  
 to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. All other liabilities  
 have been classified as non–current. 
 
 An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in  
 cash or cash equivalents. The Company has considered its operating cycle to be 12 months.
 
 Fair value measurement

 “The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. 
 
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an  
 orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement  
 is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place  
 either:
  . In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
  . In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
 “The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair  
 value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would  
 use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best  
 interest.

 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to  
 generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market  
 participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on  
 the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value  
 hierarchy as explained above.
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 Revenue Recognition

 Revenue, if any, from sale of goods will be recognized upon passage of title to the customers which  
 would generally coincide with delivery thereof.  Claims, due to uncertainty in realization, are accounted  
 for on acceptance/cash basis.  Dividend income on investments is accounted for when the right to receive  
 the payment is established.  Interest income, if any, will be recognized on a time proportion basis taking  
 into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable. Profit on sale of investments is recorded on  
 transfer of title from the Company and is determined as the  difference between sale price, carrying value  
 of Investment and other incidental expenses.Rental Income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance  
 with the terms of the relevant agreement.

 Operating Leases

 Company as Lessee

 Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of the ownership of the  
 leased assets, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense  
 in the Statement of Profit & Loss on a straight line basis over the leased term.

 Company as Lessor

 Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the  
 asset are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets.  
 Lease income on an operating lease is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line  
 basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of  
 profit and loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in  
 the statement of profit and loss.

 Retirement Benefits and other employee benefits

 Retirement benefit in the form of Gratuity is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are  
 charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when an employee renders the related service.  
 There are no  obligations other than the contributions payable to the respective trusts / funds.
 
 “Short term Employee Benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount as expense for the year in  
 which the related service is rendered.

 Borrowing Costs

 Borrowing costs (including other ancillary borrowing cost) directly attributable to the acquisition,  
 construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for  
 its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are  
 expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an  
 entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences  
 to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

 Taxation

 Provision for current Income Tax is made on the taxable income using the applicable tax rules and tax  
 laws. Deferred Tax, if any, arising on account of timing difference and which are capable of reversal  
 in one or more subsequent period is recognized using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted  
 or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets, if any, subject to consideration of  
 prudence are recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that  
 sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
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 Earnings Per Share

 Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCI for the year attributable to  
 equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.  For the  
 purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss before OCI for the period attributable  
 to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are  
 adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 Property, plant and equipment

 Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated  
 impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset  
 to its working condition for its intended use. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required  
 to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. 
 
 Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), property, plant and equipment were carried in the balance sheet  
 on cost. The Company has elected to regard those values as deemed cost at the date of transition.
 
 An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised  
 upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss  
 arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and  
 the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised. 

 The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed  
 at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

 Depreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets
 
 Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Written down value method and manner specified in 
 Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

 The Company has used Useful lives as specified in Schedule-II of Companies Act, 2013.

 Depreciation on Fixed Assets added / disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with  
 reference to the date of addition / disposal thereof.

 Impairment of non-financial assets

 The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be  
 impaired. If any indication exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company  
 estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash- 
 generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is  
 determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely  
 independent of those from other assets or Company‘s assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or 
 CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered as impaired and is written down to its  
 recoverable amount.

 Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

 Provisions 

 General
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of  
 a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to  
 settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the  
 Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
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 the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. 
 The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.
 If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted at a current pre-tax rate  
 that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due  
 to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

 Financial instruments 

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial  
 liability or equity instrument of another entity.

 Financial assets

 Initial recognition and measurement

 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at  
 fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial  
 asset.

 Subsequent measurement

 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

  (a)  Debt instruments at amortised cost
  (b) Debt instruments, derivatives, equity instruments and mutual fund investments at fair value  
         through profit or loss (FVTPL)
  (c) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 Debt instruments at amortised cost

 A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

 a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual  
      cash flows, and
 b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of  
      principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

 After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using  
 the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount  
 or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is  
 included in interest income in the profit or loss.

 Debt instruments, derivatives, equity instruments and mutual fund investments at fair value through  
 profit or loss (FVTPL)

 All derivatives and mutual fund investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity  
 instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. Equity instruments included within the  
 FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 For all equity instruments other than the ones classified as at FVTPL, the Company may make an irrevocable  
 election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company  
 maks such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition  
 and is irrevocable.
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 If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the  
 instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI  
 to Profit & Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or  
 loss within equity
 
 Derecognition

 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial  
 assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when the rights to receive cash flows  
 from the asset have expired.

 Impairment of financial assets

 “The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical trend,  
 industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. 
 The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit  
 risk.“

 Financial liabilities 

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit  
 or loss, loans and borrowings, financial guarantee contract payables, or derivative instruments.

 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and  
 payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

 Subsequent measurement

 The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and  
 financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial  
 liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near  
 term.

 Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

 Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated  
 as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities  
 designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized  
 in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer  
 the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in  
 the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value  
 through profit and loss.

 Loans and borrowings 

 This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and  
 borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. 

 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or  
 costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement  
 of profit and loss.
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 Offsetting of financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if  
 there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to  
 settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
 Cash and Cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term  
 deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of  
 changes in value.

 Contingent Liabilities

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be  
 confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control  
 of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow  
 of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases  
 where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company  
 does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)

Note : 3(i) FINANCIAL ASSET - INVESTMENT As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

Investments in Equity shares (Measured at FVTOCI)
UNQUOTED :

1500 (1500) equity shares of P. C. Properties LLP. of ` 10/- each*  -    0.02 

Investment in Subsidiary(at cost)

 Dhyaneshwar Traders (P) Ltd 
(ceased to be subsidiary w.e.f. 13.10.2020)

- 2.71

  Total  -   2.73

 Aggregate Amount of Investments 

  - Quoted  -    -   

  - Unquoted  -    2.73 

Total  -    2.73 

*P C Properties Ltd converted from Limited Company to Limited Liability Partnership w.e.f 25th October,2019 
due to which Investment is derecognise at cost through FVTOCI

Note : 3(ii) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Security Deposit  0.02  0.02 

   Total  0.02  0.02
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Note : 4 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

  Deferred Tax Assets  0.10  0.09 

   Total  0.10 0.09

Note : 5 INVENTORIES As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

   Shares  0.05  0.05 

   Total  0.05  0.05 

Note : 6(i)  FINANCIAL ASSET - TRADE RECEIVABLES As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Trade Receivables considered good-Secured  -    -   

 Trade Receivables considered good-Unsecured  0.10 -

 Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk  -   -

 Trade Receivables -Credit Impaired  -   -

   Total  0.10 -

Note : 6(ii) FINANCIAL ASSET - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Cash & Cash Equivalents:

 Balances with Banks in Current Accounts  0.05 0.04

 Cash on Hand  0.01 0.00

   Total  0.05 0.05

Note : 6(iii) FINANCIAL ASSET - OTHER BANK BALANCES As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Other Bank Balances:

 Unpaid Dividend  0.00  0.00 

   Total  0.00  0.00 

Note : 6(iv) FINANCIAL ASSET - OTHERS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Receivable from Subsidiary Company 21.88

 Advance To Others  21.86  0.01 

   Total  21.86 21.89
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Note : 7 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Advance Income Tax  2.72 2.61

   Total 2.72 2.61

Note : 8 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Balance with Statutory Authority  0.20  7.30 

 Advance Custom Duty   3.50  3.50 

 Income Tax Refundable  0.16  0.16 

 Sales Tax   -    0.16 

 Prepaid Expenses  -    -   

 Mat Credit entitlement  -   -

   Total  3.86 11.11

Note : 9 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

Equity Shares
Authorised Shares [500,000 Shares of Rs. 10/-each]  5.00  5.00 

 5.00  5.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up [ 480,000 Shares of Rs. 10/-each]  4.80  4.80 

   Total  4.80  4.80 

Notes :

a) There has been no change/movements in number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end  
 of the reporting period.

b) Terms/ rights attached to Equity Shares

 The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of  ` 10/- per share. Each holder of  
 Equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and equal right for dividend. The dividend proposed by the  
 Board of Directors is subject to the approval of Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,  
 except in case of  Interim dividend. In the event of Liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to  
 receive the remaining assets of the company after payment of all preferential amounts, in proportion of  
 their shareholding.

a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning & at the end of the reporting period 
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Equity Shares  Nos. As at
31.03.2021

 Nos. As at
31.03.2020

 At the beginning of the Year  4,80,000  4,80,000  4,80,000  4,80,000 

 Issued during the Year  -    -    -    -   

 Outstanding at the end of the Year  4,80,000  4,80,000  4,80,000  4,80,000 

d) DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDER HOLDING MORE THAN 5% IN THE COMPANY.

AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Particulars No. of 

Shares held
As at 

31.03.2021 
% Holding in 

the class

 No. of Shares 
held

As at  
31.03.2020 
% Holding in 

the class

Equity Shares of `10/- each

1. Avishek Himatsingka 2,90,950 60.61% 2,90,950 60.61%

Note : 10 OTHER EQUITY As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

(i) Retained Earnings
  Balance as per last Financial Statements  22.61  24.52 

  Adjustment on Account of Demerger  -   

  Profit / (Loss) for the year  (0.57)  (1.91)

Net Surplus/(Deficit) in the statement of Profit & Loss  22.04  22.61 

(ii) FVTOCI Reserve
 Balance as per last Financial Statements  (0.15)  (0.13)

 Gain/(Loss) on FVTOCI  (2.12)  (0.02)

 Closing  (2.27)  (0.15)

  Total  19.77  22.46 

Retained Earnings

Nature & Purpose

Retained Earnings represents accumulated surplus/(deficit).The positive balance of the Retained earning are 
available for the distribution to its owners.

FVTOCI Reserve

Nature & Purpose 

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity instruments 
through other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the FVOCI reserve. The Company 
transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities  are derecognised.

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)
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Note : 11 PROVISIONS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

  Provision for Employment Benefit (Gratuity)   0.37  0.35 

   Total  0.37  0.35 

Note : 12(i) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Trade Payables  

 Total Outstanding Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises * 

 Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro  

 Enterprise & Small Enterprises*   0.11  0.14 

   Total  0.11  0.14 

*There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to which the company owes dues.

Disclosure of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Particulars As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 
the accounting year 

 NIL  NIL 

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end 
of the accounting year 

 NIL  NIL 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, 
alongwith the amount of the payment made to supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year. 

 NIL  NIL 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment 

 NIL  NIL 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
each accounting year 

 NIL  NIL 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues 
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

 NIL  NIL 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified 
on the basis of information collected by the management.

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)
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Note : 12(ii) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHER As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Unclaimed Dividend  0.00  0.00 

 Other Payable  3.70  3.70 

 Security Deposit Received  -    -   

   Total  3.70  3.70 

Note : 13  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

  Statutory Dues  0.00  0.01 

  Advance Received from Customer  -    7.08 

   Total  0.00  7.10 

Note : 14 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Sale of Traded Goods (Chemicals)  20.02  35.66 

 Other Operating Revenue  0.73  - 

   Total  20.75  35.66 

Note : 15 OTHER INCOME As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Miscellaneous Income  0.02  0.02 

 Interest Income  0.62  - 

   Total  0.64  0.02 

Note : 16 PURCHASES OF TRADED GOODS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

  Purchase of Stock in Trade- Chemicals   19.31  35.94 

   Total  19.31  35.94 

Note : 17 CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS WORK 
IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE

As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

  Inventories at the beginning of the year 

  Shares   0.05  0.05 

  Inventories at the end of the year 
  Shares   0.05  0.05 

  Increase/(Decrease) in stock  -    -   

Note : 18 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Salary,  Allowances & Gratuity  0.54  0.47 

 Staff welfare  0.00  -   

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)
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   Total  0.54  0.47 

Note : 19 FINANCE COSTS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

  Interest Expense  0.01  0.11 

   Total  0.01  0.11 

Note : 20  OTHER EXPENSES As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Printing & Stationery  0.02  0.02 

 Advertisement  0.05  0.04 

 Insurance  0.01  0.01 

 Travelling & Conveyance  -  0.00 

 Payment to Auditors  -   

 - As Auditors  0.03  0.06 

 - For Tax Audit  0.02  0.01 

 - For Other Services  0.02  0.01 

Internal Audit  0.01  - 

 Brokerage  - 
 Bank Charges  0.00  0.00 

 Director's Meeting Fees  0.01  0.01 

Repair & Maintenance
-Others  0.01  0.00 

Rates & Taxes (includes Rs. 9,75,425/- (PY Rs. Nil ) paid on account 
of GST)

 0.98  0.15 

Legal & Professional charges  0.13  0.28 

Postage & Telephone Expenses  0.03  0.07 

Subscription Charges  0.00  0.00 

Sundry Balance Written Off  (0.05)  0.02 

Freight Charges  0.39  - 

Filling Fee  0.01  0.04 

Electricity Charges  -  - 

Licence Fee  0.00  0.00 

Listing Fees  0.38  0.32 

 Club Fees  0.01  0.01 

 Sales Promotion  0.00  - 

 Miscellaneous Expenses  0.04  0.02 

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)
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  Total  2.10  1.08 

Note 21. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 The Company aims to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going  
 concern and to optimise returns to our shareholders.

 The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance  
 of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital  
 in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the  
 risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the  
 Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue  
 new shares.

 The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity  
 so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth  
 of its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its  
 capital structure.

Note 22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 Financial risk management objectives and policies

 The Company’s principal financial liablities comprises of Borrowings & trade and other payables. The main  
 purpose of these financial liablities is to finance the company’s activities.The Company’s principal financial  
 assets include investment, receivables & cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its  
 activities.

 A. Market risk

  Market risk comprises of three types of risk : interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk,such  
  as commodity price fluctuation.Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans  
  and borrowings.
  
 B. Credit risk

  Credit risk Is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or  
  customer contract,leading to a financial loss.The credit risk comprises of two types of risk: Customer  
  credit risk and Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions.

Maturity Patterns of Borrowings

Particulars Refer Note 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Short-term Borrowings - within 1 year  -   -

  Total  -   -

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)



72

PH TRADING LIMITED
CIN NO: L51109WB1982PLC035011

Maturity Patterns of other financial liabilities

Particulars Refer Note 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Trade Payables - within 1 year 12(i)  0.11  0.14 

Other Financial Liabilities - within 1 year 12(ii)  3.70  3.70 

  Total  3.82  3.84 

Note 23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS- ACCOUNTING, CLASSIFICATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

 A. Financial Instruments by category

  Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s  
  financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of  
  fair values:

Sl.
No.

Particulars Refer 
Note 
No.

Total Fair 
Value 

 Cost 31st March, 2021

Carrying value Total

FVTPL  FVTOCI Amortized 
cost 

1 Financial Assets
(a) Investments  -    -    -    -    -    -   
(b) Trade and other Receivables 6(i)  0.10  -    -    -    0.10  0.10 
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6(ii)  0.05  -    -    -    0.05  0.05 
(d) Bank Balances other than Cash 

and Cash Equivalents
6(iii)  0.00  -    -    -    0.00  0.00 

(e) Other financial assets 6(iv)  21.86  -    -    -    21.86  21.86 
Total  22.01  -    -    -    22.01  22.01 

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
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2 Financial Liabilities
(a) Borrowings  -    -    -    -    -   
(b) Trade and other Payables 12(i)  0.11  -    -    -    0.11  0.11 
(c) Other Financial Liabilities 12(ii)  3.70  -    -    -    3.70  3.70 

Total  3.82  -    -    -    3.82  3.82 

Sl.
No.

Particulars Refer 
Note 
No.

Total Fair 
Value 

 Cost 31st March, 2021

Carrying value Total

FVTPL  FVTOCI Amortized 
cost 

1 Financial Assets
(a) Investments * 3(i)  2.73  -    -    2.73  -    2.73 

(b) Trade and other Receivables 6(i)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6(ii)  0.05  -    -    -    0.05  0.05 

(d) Bank Balances other than Cash 
and Cash Equivalents

6(iii)  0.00  -    -    -    0.00  0.00 

(e) Other financial assets 6(iv)  21.89  -    -    -    21.89  21.89 

Total  24.66  -    -    2.73  21.94  24.66 

2 Financial Liabilities
(a) Borrowings  -    -    -    -    -   

(b) Trade and other Payables 12(i)  0.14  -    -    -    0.14  0.14 

(c) Other Financial Liabilities 12(ii)  3.70  -    -    -    3.70  3.70 

Total  3.84  -    -    -    3.84  3.84 

*  Excludes investments measured at cost.

 B. Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument 
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities. The 
financial instruments are categorized into:
        

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2020
(`. in Million)
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 Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
  
 Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or  
  liability, either directly or indirectly.

 Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable  
  inputs).

 Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 
 31st March, 2021:

Particulars Refer 
Note 
No.

 Total  Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in 
active markets 
(Level 1)

Significant 
observable 
inputs 
(Level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 
inputs 
(Level 3)

Assets measured at fair value through 
OCI:
Investments in Unquoted equity shares  -    -    -    -   

TOTAL  -    -    -    -   

 Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 
 31st March, 2020 :

Particulars Refer 
Note 
No.

 Total  Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in 
active markets 
(Level 1)

Significant 
observable 
inputs 
(Level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 
inputs 
(Level 3)

Assets measured at fair value through 
OCI:
Investments in Unquoted equity shares 4  -    -    -    -   

TOTAL  -    -    -    -   

Note 24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR IN RESPECT OF :

Claims against the Company pending in court not acknowledged as debts, amount unascertainable.

Note 25. EARNING PER SHARE (AS REQUIRED BY IND AS-33)
(Amount in `)

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(a) Profit/(loss) after taxation as per Statement of Profit & Loss  (0.57)  (1.91)

(b) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding                    4,80,000.00  4,80,000.00 

 (Face Value - ` 10 per share)

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)
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 Basic /Diluted Earnings per share  (a/b)  (1.19)  (3.98)

Note 26. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (AS REQUIRED BY IND AS-19)

The present value of obligation is determined based on acturial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method,which recognises each period service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement 
and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

 Gratuity :
 A. Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2021

Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2020

 Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of year  0.35  0.31 

 Current Service Cost  0.02  0.01 

 Past Service Cost  -    -   

 (Gain)/Loss on settlements  -    -   

 Interest Expense  0.02  0.02 

 Benefit Payments from Plan Assets  -    -   

 Benefit Payments from Employer  -    -   

 Settlement Payments from Plan Assets  -    -   

 Settlement Payments from Employer  -    -   

 Other (Employee Contribution, Taxes, Expenses)  -    -   

 Increase/(Decrease) dur to effect of any business combination/divesture/ 
 transfer)

 -    -   

 Increase/(Decrease) due to Plan Combination  -    -   

 Remeasurement - Due to Demographic Assumptions  -    -   

 Remeasurement - Due to Financial Assumptions  0.00  0.02 

 Remeasurement - Due to Experience Adjustments  (0.01)  (0.02)

 Defined Benefit Obligation at end of year  0.37  0.35 

 Discount Rate 6.90%  0.07 

 Salary Escalation Rate  6.00%  p.a.  6.00%  p.a. 
 
 B. Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of year - -

Employer Direct Benefit Payments 0.01 -

Benefit Payments from Employer  (0.01) -

Fair Value of Plant Assets at end of Year - -

 C. Change in Reimbursement Rights

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)
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 Reimbursement Rights at beginning of year - -

 Reimbursement Rights at end of year - -

 
 D. Change in Asset Celling/Onerous Liability

 Asset Celling/Onerous Liability at beginning of year - -

 Asset Celling/Onerous Liability at end of year - -

 E. Components of Defined Benefit Cost

Particulars Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2021

Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2020

 Current Service Cost  0.02  0.01 

 Past Service Cost  -    -   

 (Gain)/Loss on settlements  -    -   

 Reimbursement Service Cost  -    -   

 Total Service Cost  0.02  0.01 

 Interest Expense on DBO  0.02  0.02 

 Interest (Income) on Plan Assets  -    -   

 Interest (Income) on Reimbursement Rights  -    -   

 Interest Expense on (Asset Celling) /Onefous Liability  -    -   

 Total Net Interest Cost  0.02  0.02 

 Reimbursement of Other Long Term Benefits  -    -   

 Defined lBenefit Cost included in Profit & Loss.  0.04  0.04 

 Remeasurements - Due to Demographic Assimptions  -    -   

 Remeasurements - Due to Financial  Assimptions  0.00  0.02 

 Remeasurements - Due to Experience Adjustments  (0.01)  (0.02)

 (Return) on Plan Assets (Excluding Interest Income)  -    -   

 (Return) on Reimbursement Rights  -    -   

 Changes in Asset Celling/Onerous Liability  -    -   

 Total Remeasurements in OCI  (0.01)  (0.00)

 Total Defined Benefit Cost Recognized in Profit & Loss and OCI  0.03  0.03 

 Discount Rate 6.90% 7.00%

 Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 6.00%

 F. Amounts recognized in the Statement of Financial Position

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)
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Particulars Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2021

Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2020

 Defined Benefit Obligation  0.37  0.35 

 Fair Value of Plan Assets  -    -   

 Funded Status  0.37  0.35 

 Effect of Asset Celling/ Onerous Liability  -    -   

 Net Defined Benefit Liability/Asset)  0.37  0.35 
 
G. Net Defined Benefit Liability/(Asset) reconciliation

Particulars Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2021

Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2020

 Net Defined B enefit Liability/(Asset) at beginning of year  0.35  0.31 

 Defined Benefit Cost inclujded in Profit & Loss  0.04  0.04 

 Total Remeasurements included in OCI  (0.01)  (0.00)

 Net Transfer in/(Out)(Including the effect of any business combination/ 
 divesture)

 -    -   

 Amount recognized due to Plan Combinations  -    -   

 Employer Contributions  -    -   

 Employer Direct Benefit Payments  -    -   

 Employer Direct Settlement Payments  (0.01)  -   

 Credit to Reimbursements  -    -   

 Net Defined Benefit Liability/(Asset) at end of year  0.37  0.35 

Additional Disclosure Items

Current and Non-Current Liability and Asset

Particulars Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2021

Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2020

 Non-Current Assets  -    -   

 Current Liabilities  0.01  0.01 

 Non-Current Obligation  0.35  0.33 

Expected Cash Flow for following years

Particulars Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2021

Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2020

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)
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 Year  1  0.01 
 Year  2  0.01 
 Year  3  0.02 
 Year  4  0.02 
 Year  5  0.01 
 Year  6  0.01 
 Year  7  0.01 
 Year  8  0.01 
 Year  9  0.02 
 Year  10  0.50 
Above 10 Years  0.50 

The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 8.99

  Best Estimate of Contribution during the next year
 The Best Estimate Contribution for the Company during the next year would be INR 0.05 Million/-
  Experience Adjustments on Present Value of DBO and Plan Assets

Particulars Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2021

Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2020

 (Gain)/Loss on Plan Liabilities  (0.01)  (0.02)

 % of Opening Plan Liabilities -2.88% -7.01%

 Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets  -    -   

 % of Opening Plan Assets  -    -   

Discountinuance Liability

Amount payable upon discontinuance of all employment is INR 0.38/-

Actuarial Assumptions

The principal financial assumptions used for Valuation as at the Valuation Date are shown below. The assumptions 
as at the Valuation Date are used to determine the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at that date. 
      
Summary of Financial & Demographic Assumptions

Particulars Valuation Date
 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

 Discount Rate 6.90% 7.00%

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
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 Salary Escalation - First 5 Years 6.00% 6.00%

 Salary Escalation - After 5 Years 6.00% 6.00%

 Espected Rate of Return on Plan Assets N/A N/A

 Mortality Table IALM (2012-14) Table Ultimate
 Disability Rate 5% of Mortality Rate  5% of Mortality Rate 

 Withdrawal Rate  As per table below   As per table below 

 Retirement Age 60 Years  60 Years 

 Average Future Service  18.63 19.63

Table of sample mortality rates from Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2006-08

Mortality (per annum)
Age Male Female

20 Years 0.09% 0.09%
25 Years 0.09% 0.09%
30 Years 0.10% 0.10%
35 Years 0.12% 0.12%
40 Years 0.17% 0.17%
45 Years 0.26% 0.26%
50 Years 0.44% 0.44%
55 Years 0.75% 0.75%
60 Years 1.12% 1.12%
65 Years 1.59% 1.59%
70 Years 2.41% 2.41%

Withdrawal rates, based on age (per annum)

Particulars  31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Upto 25 Years 8.00% 8.00%

26 to 30 Years 7.00% 7.00%

31 to 35 Years 6.00% 6.00%

36 to 40 Years 5.00% 5.00%

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
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41 to 45 Years 4.00% 4.00%

46 to 50 Years 3.00% 3.00%

51 to 55 Years 2.00% 2.00%

Above 56 Years 1.00% 1.00%

Note 27. AS THE COMPANY IS ENGAGED IN TRADING BUSINESS ONLY, DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY IND 
AS-108 SEGMENT REPORTING ARE NOT APPLICABLE.

Note 28. THERE IS AN AMOUNT OF RS. 1,140/- (P.Y. RS. NIL) OUTSTANDING TOWARDS INVESTOR EDUCATION 
AND PROTECTION FUND AS ON 31.03.2021..

Note 29. 

(A)  Name of the Related Party Relationship
(a) Prakash Himatsingka Key Managerial Personnel

Amar Chand Agarwal

Ashok Kr. Jhanwar

Tushar Suresh Dave

Avishek Himatsingka

Arati Trivedi

(b) Dhyaneshwar Trades Private Limited* * ceased to be subsidiary w.e.f 13-10-20

(c) Avishek Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.

Enterprises over which KMP and their relatives have 
significant influence

Variable Plaza Pvt. Ltd.

Welcome Suppliers Pvt. Ltd.

Himatsingka Chemicals Pvt. Ltd

J.R Chemtrade Pvt. Ltd.

AH Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.

(a) Name of Related Party Transaction during the year
i) With Subsidiary Company

Opening 
Balance

" Amount 
given  
during the 
year "

 Amount 
Returned 

 Closing 
Balance 

Dhyaneshwar Trades Private Limited  21.88  19.41  19.43  21.86 
* ceased to be subsidiary w.e.f 13-10-20

 -    -    -   

STANDALONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)
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To The Members of PH TRADING LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of PH TRADING LIMITED  
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding the Company”), and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its 
subsidiary together reffered to as ‘the group’), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st 
March, 2021, the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
and Consolidated statement of Cash Flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies(hereinafter referred to as “the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
of the consolidated state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2021, of consolidated Loss, consolidated 
changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of Companies 
Act, 2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.
 
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do 
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 29 of the financial statements, as regards an amount of Rs. 1,040/- outstanding 
towards Investor Education and Protection Fund as on 31.03.2021.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Ind Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, and 
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS 
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statement. 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a 
true and fair view of the Consolidated financial position, Consolidated financial performance and consolidated 
cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standard specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the 
Companies included in the group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose 
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the  Companies 
included in the group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the group are responsible for overseeing the 
financial reporting process of the group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue and auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decision of user taken on the basis of these Consolidated  Financial 
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 • Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements,  
  whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain  
  audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not  
  detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as  
  fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of  
  internal control.
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 • Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures  
  that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are  
  also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial  
  controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

 • Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting  
  estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 • Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,  
  based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or  
  conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the group to continue as a going concern. If  
  we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report  
  to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,  
  to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our  
  auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the group to cease to continue as a  
  going concern.

 • Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,  
  including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated  Financial Statements represent the underlying  
  transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 • Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or  
  business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated Financial Statements.  
  We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the Financial  
  Statements of such entities included in the consolidated Financial Statement of which we are  
  independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated  financial statements, which  
  have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision  
  and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included 
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are independent auditors regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Others Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary whose financial statements reflect Group’s share of  
 total revenues of Rs. 38.67 Million and Group’s share of net loss of Rs. 4.95 Million for the period from 1st  
 April, 2019 to 12th October, 2020 respectively (period for which the company was subsidiary), as considered  
 in the consolidated financial statements which have not been audited by us. These financial statements  
 have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our  
 opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it rerates to the amounts and disclosures  
 included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143  
 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other  
 auditors. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the 
reports of the other auditors and the financial statements / financial information certified by the Management.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
 
As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge  
  and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial  
  Statements.

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid  
  Consolidated Financial Statement have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those  
  books and reports of the other auditors.

 (c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement  
  of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in  
  agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the  
  Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting  
  Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting  
  Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

 (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on  
  31st March, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the  
  statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, none of the directors of the group company is disqualified  
  as on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company  
  and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure - A”.

 (g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the  
  Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and  
  according to the explanations given to us:

 (i) There were no pending litigations which would impact the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Position of the  
  Holding Company and its subsidiary. 

 (ii) The Holding Company and its subsidiary did not have any long-term contracts including derivative  
  contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
 
 (iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection  
  Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary company.

For H.B. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 0322716E

Himansu Sekhar Senapati
Partner

Membership No. 054660
UDIN - 21054660AAAAIQ6940

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30/06/2021
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ANNEXURE ‘A’  INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”). 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for 
the year ended 31st March, 2021, we have audited the internal financials control over financial reporting of 
PH TRADING LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary Company 
Dhyaneshwar Traders Private Limited, which are incorporated in India as on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the company and its subsidiary company, which are incorporated in India, 
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor, in 
terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary Company, which is incorporated in India, have, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2021, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to one subsidiary company, which 
is a Company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditor of such Company, 
incorporated in India.

For H. B. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 0322716E

Himansu Sekhar Senapati
Partner

Membership No. 054660
UDIN - 21054660AAAAIQ6940

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30/06/2021
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)

Particulars Note 
No.

As at
31-03-2021

As at
31-03-2020

I ASSETS:

Non - Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment  -    4.04 

Goodwill on Consolidation  -    0.02 

(a) Financial Assets

 (i)  Investments 3(i)  -    0.02 

 (ii) Other Financial Assets 3(ii)  0.02  0.04 

(b) Deferred Tax Assets 4  0.10  1.83 

 0.12  5.95 

Current Assets
(a) Inventories 5  0.05  0.05 

(b) Financial Assets

 (i)   Trade Receivables 6(i)  0.10  52.51 

 (ii)  Cash and Cash Equivalents 6(ii)  0.05  -   

 (iii) Other Bank Balances 6(iii)  0.00  0.49 

 (iv) Other Financial Assets 6(iv)  21.86  0.01 

(c) Current Tax Assets(net) 7  2.72  3.36 

(d) Other Current Assets 8  3.86  13.59 

 28.64  70.00 

Total  28.75  75.95 

Particulars Note 
No.

As at
31-03-2021

As at
31-03-2020

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:

Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 9  4.80  4.80 

(b) Other Equity 10  19.77  (49.56)

 24.57  (44.76)

LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 11  0.37  0.35 

Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

 (i)  Borrowings 12(i)  98.83 

 (ii) Trade Payables 12(ii)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)

Particulars Note 
No.

For the year 
ended

31-03-2021

For the year 
ended

31-03-2020
 (I)    Revenue From Operations 14  59.38  558.67 

 (II)   Other Income 15  0.64  4.46 

 (III)  Total Revenue (I + II)  60.03  563.13 

 (IV)  Expenses: 

   Purchase of Traded Goods 16  57.03  549.12 

   Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-
   progress and Stock-in-Trade

17

   Employee Benefits Expense 18  0.54  0.47 

   Finance Cost 19  5.39  9.20 

   Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 20  0.10  0.16 

   Other Expenses 21  2.66  72.46 

 (V)   Total Expenses  65.73  631.41 

 (VI)  Profit/(Loss) before Tax (III - V)  (5.70)  (68.28)

 (VII) Tax Expense:
   (1) Current Tax  0.50 

   Less: Mat credit entitlement  -    (0.50)

   Net Current Tax  -    -   

       Total of outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises

       Total of outstanding dues of enterprises other than Micro  
       and Small Enterprises

 0.11  7.65 

 (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 12(iii)  3.70  3.70 

(b) Other Current Liabilities 13  0.00  10.18 

 4.19  120.71 

Total  28.75  75.95 

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes.    1-2 (0.00)
The accompanying Notes are integral part of the Financial Statement 
As per our report of even date attached.

For  H.B. & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 0322716E

Place :  Kolkata
Date   : 30/06/2021

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka
Avishek Himatsingka

Directors
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   (2) Deferred Tax  (0.18)  0.78 

   (3) Income Tax for Earlier Years  -    -   

 Profit/(Loss) for the Period (VII- VIII)  (5.88)  (69.06)

 (IX)   Other Comprehensive Income for the period
 (A)    (i) Item that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss  (7.08)  (0.02)

    (ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be  
    reclassified to Profit or Loss

 0.01  -   

 (B)    (i) Item that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss  -    -   

    (ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified  
    to Profit or Loss

 -    -   

Total  (7.07)  (0.02)
     Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VIII + IX)  (12.95)  (69.08)

 (IX) Earning per Equity Share 28
   Basic  (12.24)  (143.87)

   Diluted  (12.24)  (143.87)

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statement
As per our report of even date attached.

For  H.B. & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 0322716E

Place :  Kolkata
Date      : 30/06/2021

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka
Avishek Himatsingka

Directors
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

Particulars For the year 
ended

31.03.2021

For the year 
ended

31.03.2020
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
 Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax & Extra-Ordinary Items  (0.58)  (68.28)

 Less:Prior Period Items  -    -   

 Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax & Extra-Ordinary Items  (0.58)  (68.28)

 Adjustment for : 
 Depreciation  0.16 

 Assets discarded during the year  -    -   

 Rental income  -    (0.02)

 Interest Expenses  0.01  9.20 

 Dividend Income  -   

 Provision for Gratuity  0.01  0.04 

 Provision for Bad Debt  69.54 

 Interest Income  (0.62)  -   

 Fair Value Measurement of Employee Benefit   -    -   

 (Profit)/Loss on Sale of Mutual fund  -    -   

 (Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  -   

 Investments written off  -    -   

 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  (1.18)  10.62 

 Movements In Working Capital  : 
 Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  (0.03)  2.60 

 Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  (7.10)  (1.23)

 (Increase)/ Decrease in Trade recievable  (0.10)  (18.21)

 (Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial Assets  0.03  0.09 

 (Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets  7.26  (1.04)

 (Increase)/Decrease in Other financial liabilities  (0.06)

 (Increase)/Decrease in Other non current asset  -    0.00 

 Cash generated from/(used in) Operations  (1.11)  (7.23)

 Direct Taxes Paid (Net)  (0.11)  (2.44)

 Net Cash from Operating Activities  (1.22)  (9.67)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
  Dividend Received  -   

  Rent received  -    0.02 

  Interest Received  0.62  -   

  Maturity of fixed deposit  -    -   



91

PH TRADING LIMITED
CIN NO: L51109WB1982PLC035011

  Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment  (1.27)

  Sale of Investment  2.73  -   

  Profit/Loss on Sale of Investment  (2.13)  -   

  Net Cash from Investing Activities  1.22  (1.24)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
   Interest paid  (0.01)  (9.20)

  Dividend paid  -    -   

   Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings  18.27 

    Net Cash from Financing Activities  (0.01)  9.08 

    Net (Decrease)/ Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (0.01)  (1.83)

    Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year  0.05  2.32 

    Cash Transferred on Account of Scheme of Arrangement  -    -   

    Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year  0.05  0.49 

 Cash & Cash Equivalents :
 Balances with Bank 
 Current Account  0.05  2.30 

 Cash-on-Hand  0.01  0.02 

   TOTAL  0.05  2.32 

Note:

 (a)  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/recasted wherever necessary.

 (b) The above cash flow has been prepared under “Indirect Method” as prescribed under Indian Accounting  
  Standard(Ind AS) 7 -”Statements Of Cash Flows” as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies  
  Act 2013, as notified under  the Companies(Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015,  Companies (Indian  
  Accounting standards) Ammendment  Rules, 2016 and other Accounting Principles Generally Accepted  
  in India.

For  H.B. & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 0322716E

Place :  Kolkata
Date      :  30/06/2021

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka
Avishek Himatsingka

Directors
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(A) Equity Share Capital

Particulars Notes Number Amount (`)
At 31st March, 2020 9  4,80,000  4.80 
Issued during the year 2020-21  -    -   
At 31st March, 2021 9  4,80,000  4.80 

(B) Other Equity

Particulars Items of OCI
Total (`)Retained

Earnings
Net Gain / (Loss) 

on FVTOCI
Balance as on 31st March, 2019  24.52  (0.13)  24.39 

Adjustment on Account of Demerger  -    -    -   

Profit / (Loss) for the year  (1.91)  -    (1.91)

Net Gain / (Loss) on FVTOCI  -    (0.02)  (0.02)
Balance as on 31st March, 2020  22.61  (0.15)  22.46 
Adjustment on Account of Demerger  -   

Profit / (Loss) for the year  (0.57)  -    (0.57)
Net Gain / (Loss) on FVTOCI  -    (2.12)  (2.12)
Balance as on 31st March, 2021  22.04  (2.27)  19.77 

As per our report of even date

For  H.B. & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 0322716E

Place :  Kolkata
Date      :  30/06/2021

Prakash Chandra Himatsingka
Avishek Himatsingka

Directors
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 1. Corporate Information

 PH Trading Limited (the Company ) having CIN No.- L51109WB1982PLC035011 and its registered office  
 at113, Poddar Point, Park Street,Block B,10th Floor,Kolkata-700016, India is a Public Limited Company  
 incorporated and domiciled in India. 
 
 2.1. Basis of Preparation

 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting  
 Standards (Ind AS) notified under The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (the Rules). 
 
 2.2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
  
 Basis of classification of Current and non-current

 Assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet have been classified as either current or non–current based  
 upon the requirements of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
 An asset has been classified as current if (a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or  
 consumption in the Company’s normal operating cycle; or (b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being  
 traded; or (c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or (d) it is cash  
 or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least  
 twelve months after the reporting date. All other assets have been classified as non–current. 
 
 A liability has been classified as current when (a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal  
 operating cycle; or (b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or (c) it is due to be settled  
 within twelve months after the reporting date; or (d) the Company does not have an unconditional right  
 to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. All other liabilities  
 have been classified as non–current. 
 
 An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in  
 cash or cash equivalents. The Company has considered its operating cycle to be 12 months.
 
 Fair value measurement

 “The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. 
 
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an  
 orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement  
 is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place  
 either:
  . In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
  . In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
 “The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair  
 value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would  
 use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best  
 interest.

 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to  
 generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market  
 participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on  
 the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value  
 hierarchy as explained above.
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021



94

PH TRADING LIMITED
CIN NO: L51109WB1982PLC035011

 Revenue Recognition

 Revenue, if any, from sale of goods will be recognized upon passage of title to the customers which  
 would generally coincide with delivery thereof.  Claims, due to uncertainty in realization, are accounted  
 for on acceptance/cash basis.  Dividend income on investments is accounted for when the right to receive  
 the payment is established.  Interest income, if any, will be recognized on a time proportion basis taking  
 into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable. Profit on sale of investments is recorded on  
 transfer of title from the Company and is determined as the  difference between sale price, carrying value  
 of Investment and other incidental expenses.Rental Income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance  
 with the terms of the relevant agreement.

 Operating Leases

 Company as Lessee

 Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of the ownership of the  
 leased assets, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense  
 in the Statement of Profit & Loss on a straight line basis over the leased term.

 Company as Lessor

 Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the  
 asset are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets.  
 Lease income on an operating lease is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line  
 basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of  
 profit and loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in  
 the statement of profit and loss.

 Retirement Benefits and other employee benefits

 Retirement benefit in the form of Gratuity is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are  
 charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when an employee renders the related service.  
 There are no  obligations other than the contributions payable to the respective trusts / funds.
 
 “Short term Employee Benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount as expense for the year in  
 which the related service is rendered.

 Borrowing Costs

 Borrowing costs (including other ancillary borrowing cost) directly attributable to the acquisition,  
 construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for  
 its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are  
 expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an  
 entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences  
 to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

 Taxation

 Provision for current Income Tax is made on the taxable income using the applicable tax rules and tax  
 laws. Deferred Tax, if any, arising on account of timing difference and which are capable of reversal  
 in one or more subsequent period is recognized using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted  
 or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets, if any, subject to consideration of  
 prudence are recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that  
 sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
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 Earnings Per Share

 Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCI for the year attributable to  
 equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.  For the  
 purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss before OCI for the period attributable  
 to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are  
 adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
 Property, plant and equipment

 Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated  
 impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset  
 to its working condition for its intended use. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required  
 to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. 
 
 Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), property, plant and equipment were carried in the balance sheet  
 on cost. The Company has elected to regard those values as deemed cost at the date of transition.
 
 An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised  
 upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss  
 arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and  
 the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised. 

 The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed  
 at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

 Depreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets
 
 Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Written down value method and manner specified in 
 Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

 The Company has used Useful lives as specified in Schedule-II of Companies Act, 2013.

 Depreciation on Fixed Assets added / disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with  
 reference to the date of addition / disposal thereof.

 Impairment of non-financial assets

 The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be  
 impaired. If any indication exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company  
 estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash- 
 generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is  
 determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely  
 independent of those from other assets or Company‘s assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or 
 CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered as impaired and is written down to its  
 recoverable amount.

 Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

 Provisions 

 General

 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of  
 a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to  
 settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the  
 Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,  
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 the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. 
 The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

 If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted at a current pre-tax rate  
 that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due  
 to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

 Financial instruments 

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial  
 liability or equity instrument of another entity.

 Financial assets

 Initial recognition and measurement

 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at  
 fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial  
 asset.

 Subsequent measurement

 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

  (a)  Debt instruments at amortised cost
  (b) Debt instruments, derivatives, equity instruments and mutual fund investments at fair value  
         through profit or loss (FVTPL)
  (c) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 Debt instruments at amortised cost

 A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

 a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual  
      cash flows, and
 b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of  
      principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

 After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using  
 the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount  
 or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is  
 included in interest income in the profit or loss.

 Debt instruments, derivatives, equity instruments and mutual fund investments at fair value through  
 profit or loss (FVTPL)

 All derivatives and mutual fund investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity  
 instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. Equity instruments included within the  
 FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 For all equity instruments other than the ones classified as at FVTPL, the Company may make an irrevocable  
 election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company  
 maks such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition  
 and is irrevocable.
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 If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the  
 instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI  
 to Profit & Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or  
 loss within equity
 
 Derecognition

 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial  
 assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when the rights to receive cash flows  
 from the asset have expired.

 Impairment of financial assets

 “The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical trend,  
 industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. 
 The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit  
 risk.“

 Financial liabilities 

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit  
 or loss, loans and borrowings, financial guarantee contract payables, or derivative instruments.

 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and  
 payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

 Subsequent measurement

 The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and  
 financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial  
 liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near  
 term.

 Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

 Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated  
 as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities  
 designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized  
 in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer  
 the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in  
 the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value  
 through profit and loss.

 Loans and borrowings 

 This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and  
 borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. 

 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or  
 costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement  
 of profit and loss.
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 Offsetting of financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if  
 there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to  
 settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
 Cash and Cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term  
 deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of  
 changes in value.

 Contingent Liabilities

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be  
 confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control  
 of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow  
 of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases  
 where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company  
 does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)

Note : 3(i) FINANCIAL ASSET - INVESTMENT As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Investments in Equity shares (Measured at FVTOCI)
 UNQUOTED :
  1500 (1500) equity shares of P. C. Properties LLP. of ` 10/- each*  -    0.02 

  Total  -    0.02 

*P C Properties Ltd converted from Limited Company to Limited Liability Partnership w.e.f 25th October, 
2019 due to which Investment is derecognised at cost through FVTOCI

Note : 3(ii) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

Security Deposit  0.02  0.04 

   Total  0.02  0.04 

Note : 4 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

Deferred Tax Assets  0.10  1.34 

MAT Credit Entitlement  -    0.50 

   Total  0.10  1.83 

Note : 5 INVENTORIES As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

Shares  0.05  0.05 

   Total  0.05  0.05 

Note : 6(i)  FINANCIAL ASSET - TRADE RECEIVABLES As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Trade Receivables considered good-Secured  -    -   

 Trade Receivables considered good-Unsecured  0.10  52.51 

 Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk  -   

 Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired  -    69.54 

 Less Provision for Impairment  -    (69.54)

   Total  0.10  52.51 

Note : 6(ii) FINANCIAL ASSET - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

Cash & Cash Equivalents:
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts  0.05  0.48 

Cash on Hand  0.01  0.01 

   Total  0.05  0.49 
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021
(`. in Million)

Note : 6(iii) FINANCIAL ASSET - OTHER BANK BALANCES As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Other Bank Balances:
 Unpaid Dividend  0.00  0.00 

   Total  0.00  0.00 

Note : 6(iv) FINANCIAL ASSET - OTHERS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Advance To Others  21.86  0.01 

   Total  21.86  0.01 

Note : 7 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Advance Income Tax   2.72  3.36 

   Total  2.72  3.36 

Note : 8 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Balance with Statutory Authority  0.20  9.76 

 Advance Custom Duty   3.50  3.50 

 Income Tax Refundable  0.16  0.16 

 Sales Tax   -    0.16 

 Prepaid Expenses  -    -   

 Other Current Assets  -    0.01 

   Total  3.86  13.59 

Note : 9 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

Equity Shares
Authorised Shares 
[500,000 Shares of Rs. 10/-each]

 5.00  5.00 

 5.00  5.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up 
[ 480,000 Shares of Rs. 10/-each]

 4.80  4.80 

   Total  4.80  4.80 

Notes :

a) There has been no change/movements in number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end  
 of the reporting period.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31.03.2021

b) Terms/ rights attached to Equity Shares

 The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of  ` 10/- per share. Each holder of  
 Equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and equal right for dividend. The dividend proposed by  
 the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,  
 except in case of  Interim dividend. In the event of Liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to  
 receive the remaining assets of the company after payment of all preferential amounts, in proportion of  
 their shareholding. 

a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning & at the end of the reporting period 

Equity Shares  Nos. As at
31.03.2021

 Nos. As at
31.03.2020

 At the beginning of the Year  4,80,000  48,00,000  4,80,000  48,00,000 

 Issued during the Year  -    -    -    -   

 Outstanding at the end of the Year  4,80,000  48,00,000  4,80,000  48,00,000 

d) DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDER HOLDING MORE THAN 5% IN THE COMPANY.

AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Particulars No. of 

Shares held
As at 

31.03.2021 
% Holding in 

the class

 No. of Shares 
held

As at  
31.03.2020 
% Holding in 

the class

Equity Shares of  `10/- each

1. Avishek Himatsingka 2,90,950 60.61% 2,90,950 60.61%

Note : 10 OTHER EQUITY As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

(i) Retained Earnings
  Balance as per last Financial Statements  22.61  19.64 

  Adjustment on Account of Demerger  -   
  Profit / (Loss) for the year  (0.57)  (69.06)

  Net Surplus/(Deficit) in the statement of Profit & Loss  22.04  (49.42)

(ii) FVTOCI Reserve
 Balance as per last Financial Statements  (0.15)  (0.13)

 Net Gain/(Loss) on FVTOCI Investments  (2.12)  (0.02)

 Closing  (2.27)  (0.15)

  Total  19.77  (49.56)

Retained Earnings

Nature & Purpose

Retained Earnings represents accumulated surplus/(deficit).The positive balance of the Retained earning are 
available for the distribution to its owners.
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FVTOCI Reserve

Nature & Purpose

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity instruments 
through other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the FVOCI reserve. The Company 
transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities  are derecognised.

(`. in Million)

Note :11 PROVISIONS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

  Provision for Employment Benefit (Gratuity)   0.37  0.35 

   Total  0.37  0.35 

Note : 12(i)FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Loan Repayable On Demand(Secured)

 -From Bank

 Loan from Related Parties (Unsecured)
 - From Directors  -    13.31 

 - From Others  -    54.05 

 Loans from Bodies Corporate (Unsecured)  -    31.47 

   Total  -    98.83 

Note : 12 (ii) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - TRADE PAYABLES As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Trade Payables  

 Total Outstanding Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises *  -    -   

             Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro  
             Enterprise & Small Enterprises*   0.11  7.65 

   Total  0.11  7.65 

*There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to which the company owes dues.

Disclosure of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Particulars As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 
the accounting year

 NIL  NIL 

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end 
of the accounting year

 NIL  NIL 
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The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, 
alongwith the amount of the payment made to supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year.

 NIL  NIL 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment

 NIL  NIL 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
each accounting year

 NIL  NIL 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in 
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above 
are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disal-
lowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

 NIL  NIL 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified 
on the basis of information collected by the management.

Note : 12 (iii) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHER As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Unclaimed Dividend  0.00  0.00 

 Other Payables  3.70  3.70 

 Security Deposit Received  -    -   

   Total  3.70  3.70 

Note : 13 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Statutory Dues  0.00  0.01 

 Audit Fees Payable  10.06 

 Other Payables  -    0.11 

   Total  0.00  10.18 

Note : 14 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Sale of Traded Goods (Chemicals)  58.42  558.57 

 Other Operating Revenue  0.97  0.09 

   Total  59.38 558.67

Note : 15 OTHER INCOME As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Miscellaneous Income  0.02  0.02 

 Rent Received  -    0.02 

 Commision  -    4.42 

 Sundry Balance Written Back  0.00  -   

 Interest Income  0.62  -   

   Total  0.64  4.46 
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Note : 16 PURCHASES OF TRADED GOODS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Purchase of Stock in Trade- Chemicals   57.03  549.12 

   Total  57.03  549.12 

Note : 17 CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS WORK 
IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE

As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Inventories at the beginning of the year

 Shares  0.05  0.05 

 Inventories at the end of the year
 Shares  0.05  0.05 

 Increase/(Decrease) in stock  -    -   

Note : 18 EMPLOYEES BENEFIT EXPENSES As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Salary, Allowances & Gratuity  0.54  0.47 

 Staff welfare  0.00  -   

   Total  0.54  0.47 

Note : 19 FINANCE COSTS As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Interest Expense  5.39  9.20 

   Total  5.39  9.20 

Note : 20 DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSE As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

 Depreciation  0.10  0.16 

   Total  0.10  0.16 

Note : 21  OTHER EXPENSES For the
Year Ended 
31.03.2021

For the
Year Ended 
31.03.2020

 Printing & Stationery  0.02  0.04 

 Advertisement  0.05  0.04 

 Insurance  0.02  0.02 

 Travelling & Conveyance  -    0.00 

 Payment to Auditors  -   

 - As Auditors  0.03  0.13 

 - For Tax Audit  0.02  0.02 

 - For Other Services  0.02  0.01 

Internal Audit  0.01  -   
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 Brokerage  -   
 Bank Charges  0.00  0.01 

 Vehicle Expenses  -    -   

 Director's Remuneration  -    -   

 Director's Meeting Fees  0.01  0.01 

Repair & Maintenance
-Building  0.07  0.12 

-Others  0.01  0.00 

 Rates & Taxes  1.06  0.18 

 Legal & Professional charges  0.13  0.44 

 Postage & Telephone Expenses  0.03  0.07 

 Selling & Distribution Expenses  -   

Loss on Sale of Shares

Subscription Charges  0.00  0.00 

Provision for bad debt  -    69.54 

Sundry Balance Written Off  (0.05)  0.04 

 Freight Charges  0.63  0.99 

 Rent  0.09  0.18 

Filling Fee  0.01  0.04 

Electricity Charges  0.05  0.17 

Licence Fee  0.01  0.02 

 Listing Fees  0.38  0.32 

 Shortage Claim  0.01 

 Loading & Unloading Charges  0.02 

 Club Fees  0.01  0.01 

 Sales Promotion  0.00  -   

 Miscellaneous Expenses  0.04  0.02 

   Total  2.66  72.46 

22 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going  
 concern and to optimise returns to our shareholders.

 The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of  
 key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in  
 proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the  
 risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the  
 Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue  
 new shares.
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 The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as  
 to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of  
 its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its  
 capital structure.

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 Financial risk management  objectives and policies

 The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprises of Borrowings & trade and other payables. The main  
 purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the company’s activities. The Company’s principal  
 financial assets include investment, receivables and cash equivalents that derive directly from its  
 activities.

A. Market Risk
  
 Market risk comprises of three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such  
 as commodity price fluctuation. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and  
 borrowings, deposits and derivative financial instruments.

 B. Credit Risk   

 Credit risk Is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or  
 customer contract,leading to a financial loss.The credit risk comprises of two types of risk: Customer credit  
 risk and Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions.

Maturity Patterns of Borrowings

Particulars Refer Note 31-03-2021 31 March, 2020
Short-term Borrowings - within 1 year  -    98.83 

Total  -    98.83 
Maturity Patterns of other financial liabilities

Particulars Refer Note 31-03-2021 31 March, 2020
Trade Payables - within 1 year 12(i)  0.11  7.65 
Other Financial Liabilities - within 1 year 12(ii)  3.70  3.70 

Total  3.82  11.35 
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Note 24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - ACCOUNTING, CLASSIFICATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

 A. Financial Instruments by category

  Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s  
  financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of  
  fair values:

Sl.
No.

Particulars Refer 
Note 
No.

Total Fair 
Value 

 Cost 31st March, 2021

Carrying value Total

FVTPL  FVTOCI Amortized 
cost 

1 Financial Assets
(a) Investments * 4  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(b) Trade and other Receivables 6(i)  0.10  -    -    -    0.10  0.10 
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6(ii)  0.05  -    -    -    0.05  0.05 

(d) Bank Balances other than Cash 
and Cash Equivalents

6(iii)  0.00  -    -    -    0.00  0.00 

(e) Other financial assets 6(iv)  21.86  -    -    -    21.86  21.86 

Total  22.01  -    -    -    22.01  22.01 

2 Financial Liabilities
(a) Borrowings 12(i)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(b) Trade and other Payables 12(ii)  0.11  -    -    -    0.11  0.11 

(c) Other Financial Liabilities 12(iii)  3.70  -    -    -    3.70  3.70 

Total  3.82  -    -    -    3.82  3.82 
*  Excludes investments measured at cost.
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Sl.
No.

Particulars Refer 
Note 
No.

Total Fair 
Value 

 Cost 31st March, 2020

Carrying value Total

FVTPL  FVTOCI Amortized 
cost 

1 Financial Assets
(a) Investments * 4  0.04  -    -    0.04  -    0.04 
(b) Trade and other Receivables 6(i)  52.51  -    -    -    52.51  52.51 
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6(ii)  0.49  -    -    -    0.49  0.49 
(d) Bank Balances other than Cash 

and Cash Equivalents
6(iii)  0.00  -    -    -    0.00  0.00 

(e) Other financial assets 6(iv)  0.01  -    -    -    0.01  0.01 
Total  53.05  -    -    0.04  53.01  53.05 

2 Financial Liabilities
(a) Borrowings 12(i)  98.83  -    -    -    98.83  98.83 
(b) Trade and other Payables 12(ii)  7.65  -    -    -    7.65  7.65 

(c) Other Financial Liabilities 12(iii)  3.70  -    -    -    3.70  3.70 

Total  110.18  -    -    -    110.18  110.18 
*  Excludes investments measured at cost.

 B. Fair Value Hierarchy

  The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amount at which  
  the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a  
  forced or liquidation sale.        
 
  The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and  
  liabilities. The financial instruments are catagorized into      
  
  Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.  
     
  Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset  
   or liability, either directly or  indirectly.      
 
  Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable  
   inputs).       
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Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31st March, 2021 :

Particulars Refer 
Note 
No.

 Total  Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in 
active markets 
(Level 1)

Significant 
observable 
inputs 
(Level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 
inputs 
(Level 3)

Assets measured at fair value through 
OCI:
Investments in Unquoted equity shares  -    -    -    -   

TOTAL  -    -    -    -   

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31st March, 2021 :

Particulars Refer 
Note 
No.

 Total  Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in 
active markets 
(Level 1)

Significant 
observable 
inputs 
(Level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 
inputs 
(Level 3)

Assets measured at fair value through 
OCI:
Investments in Unquoted equity shares 4  -    -    -    -   

TOTAL  -    -    -    -   

Note 25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR IN RESPECT OF :

Claims against the Company pending in court not acknowledged as debts, amount unascertainable.

Note 26. EARNING PER SHARE (AS REQUIRED BY IND AS-33)
(Amount in `)

Particulars 31.03.2021  31.03.2020 
(a) Profit/(loss) after taxation as per Statement of Profit & Loss  (13.0)  (69.1)

(b) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding                    4,80,000.0  4,80,000.0 

 (Face Value - ` 10 per share)

 Basic /Diluted Earnings per share  (a/b)  (27.0)  (143.9)



110

PH TRADING LIMITED
CIN NO: L51109WB1982PLC035011

Note 27. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (AS REQUIRED BY IND AS-19)

The present value of obligation is determined based on acturial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method,which recognises each period service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement 
and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
Gratuity :

 A. Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2021

Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2020

 Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of year  0.35  0.31 

 Current Service Cost  0.02  0.01 

 Past Service Cost  -    -   

 (Gain)/Loss on settlements  -    -   

 Interest Expense  0.02  0.02 

 Benefit Payments from Plan Assets  -    -   

 Benefit Payments from Employer  -    -   

 Settlement Payments from Plan Assets  -    -   

 Settlement Payments from Employer  -    -   

 Other (Employee Contribution, Taxes, Expenses)  -    -   

 Increase/(Decrease) dur to effect of any business combination/divesture/ 
 transfer)

 -    -   

 Increase/(Decrease) due to Plan Combination  -    -   

 Remeasurement - Due to Demographic Assumptions  -    -   

 Remeasurement - Due to Financial Assumptions  0.00  0.02 

 Remeasurement - Due to Experience Adjustments  (0.01)  (0.02)

 Defined Benefit Obligation at end of year  0.37  0.35 

 Discount Rate  0.07  0.07 

 Salary Escalation Rate  6.00%  p.a.  6.00%  p.a. 

 B. Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of year - -

Fair Value of Plant Assets at end of Year - -

 C. Change in Reimbursement Rights

 Reimbursement Rights at beginning of year 0.01 -

 Reimbursement Rights at end of year (0.01) -

 D. Change in Asset Celling/Onerous Liability

 Asset Celling/Onerous Liability at beginning of year - -

 Asset Celling/Onerous Liability at end of year - -
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 E. Components of Defined Benefit Cost

Particulars Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2021

Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2020

 Current Service Cost  0.02  0.01 

 Past Service Cost  -    -   

 (Gain)/Loss on settlements  -    -   

 Reimbursement Service Cost  -    -   

 Total Service Cost  0.02  0.01 

 Interest Expense on DBO  0.02  0.02 

 Interest (Income) on Plan Assets  -    -   

 Interest (Income) on Reimbursement Rights  -    -   

 Interest Expense on (Asset Celling) /Onefous Liability  -    -   

 Total Net Interest Cost  0.02  0.02 

 Reimbursement of Other Long Term Benefits  -    -   

 Defined lBenefit Cost included in Profit & Loss.  0.04  0.04 

 Remeasurements - Due to Demographic Assimptions  -    -   

 Remeasurements - Due to Financial  Assimptions  0.00  0.02 

 Remeasurements - Due to Experience Adjustments  (0.01)  (0.02)

 (Return) on Plan Assets (Excluding Interest Income)  -    -   

 (Return) on Reimbursement Rights  -    -   

 Changes in Asset Celling/Onerous Liability  -    -   

 Total Remeasurements in OCI  (0.01)  (0.00)

 Total Defined Benefit Cost Recognized in Profit & Loss and OCI  0.03  0.03 

 Discount Rate 6.90% 7.00%

 Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 6.00%

 F. Amounts recognized in the Statement of Financial Position

Particulars Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2021

Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2020

 Defined Benefit Obligation  0.37  0.35 

 Fair Value of Plan Assets  -    -   

 Funded Status  0.37  0.35 

 Effect of Asset Celling/ Onerous Liability  -    -   

 Net Defined Benefit Liability/Asset)  0.37  0.35 



112

PH TRADING LIMITED
CIN NO: L51109WB1982PLC035011

 G. Net Defined Benefit Liability/(Asset) reconciliation

Particulars Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2021

Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2020

 Net Defined B enefit Liability/(Asset) at beginning of year  0.35  0.31 

 Defined Benefit Cost inclujded in Profit & Loss  0.04  0.04 

 Total Remeasurements included in OCI  (0.01)  (0.00)

 Net Transfer in/(Out)(Including the effect of any business combination/ 
 divesture)

 -    -   

 Amount recognized due to Plan Combinations  -    -   

 Employer Contributions  -    -   

 Employer Direct Benefit Payments  -    -   

 Employer Direct Settlement Payments  (0.01)  -   

 Credit to Reimbursements  -    -   

 Net Defined Benefit Liability/(Asset) at end of year  0.37  0.35 

Additional Disclosure Items

Current and Non-Current Liability and Asset

Particulars Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2021

Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2020

 Non-Current Assets  -    -   

 Current Liabilities  0.01  0.01 

 Non-Current Obligation  0.35  0.33 

Expected Cash Flow for following years

Particulars Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2021

Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2020

 Year  1  0.01 
 Year  2  0.01 
 Year  3  0.02 
 Year  4  0.02 
 Year  5  0.01 
 Year  6  0.01 
 Year  7  0.01 
 Year  8  0.01 
 Year  9  0.02 
Above 10 Years  0.50 
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The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 8.99

  Best Estimate of Contribution during the next year
 The Best Estimate Contribution for the Company during the next year would be INR 0.05 Million/-
  Experience Adjustments on Present Value of DBO and Plan Assets

Particulars Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2021

Financial
Year Ending
31.03.2020

 (Gain)/Loss on Plan Liabilities  (0.01)  (0.02)

 % of Opening Plan Liabilities -2.88% -7.01%

 Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets  -    -   

 % of Opening Plan Assets  -    -   

Discountinuance Liability

Amount payable upon discontinuance of all employment is INR 0.38 Millions /-

Actuarial Assumptions

The principal financial assumptions used for Valuation as at the Valuation Date are shown below. The assumptions 
as at the Valuation Date are used to determine the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at that date. 
      
Summary of Financial & Demographic Assumptions

Particulars Valuation Date
 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

 Discount Rate 6.90% 7.00%

 Salary Escalation - First 5 Years 6.00% 6.00%

 Salary Escalation - After 5 Years 6.00% 6.00%

 Espected Rate of Return on Plan Assets N/A N/A

 Mortality Table IALM (2012-14) Table Ultimate
 Disability Rate 5% of Mortality Rate  5% of Mortality Rate 

 Withdrawal Rate  As per table below   As per table below 

 Retirement Age 60 Years  60 Years 

 Average Future Service  18.63 19.63
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Table of sample mortality rates from Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2006-08

Mortality (per annum)
Age Male Female

20 Years 0.09% 0.09%

25 Years 0.09% 0.09%

30 Years 0.10% 0.10%

35 Years 0.12% 0.12%

40 Years 0.17% 0.17%

45 Years 0.26% 0.26%

50 Years 0.44% 0.44%

55 Years 0.75% 0.75%

60 Years 1.12% 1.12%

65 Years 1.59% 1.59%

70 Years 2.41% 2.41%

Withdrawal rates, based on age (per annum)

Particulars  31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Upto 25 Years 8.00% 8.00%

26 to 30 Years 7.00% 7.00%

31 to 35 Years 6.00% 6.00%

36 to 40 Years 5.00% 5.00%

41 to 45 Years 4.00% 4.00%

46 to 50 Years 3.00% 3.00%

51 to 55 Years 2.00% 2.00%

Above 56 Years 1.00% 1.00%

Note 28. AS THE COMPANY IS ENGAGED IN TRADING BUSINESS ONLY, DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY IND 
AS-108 SEGMENT REPORTING ARE NOT APPLICABLE.

Note 29. There is an amount of Rs. 1,140/- (P.Y. Rs. Nil) outstanding towards Investor Education and 
Protection Fund as on 31.03.2021.
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Note 30. 

 (A) Name of the Related Party Relationship
(a)   Dhyaneshwar Trades Private Limited* Key Managerial Personnel

(b)   Prakash Himatsingka

        Amar Chandra Agarwal

        Ashok Kr. Jhanwar

        Avishek Himatsingka

        Tushar Suresh Dave

        Arati Trivedi

(c)  Avishek Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.

Enterprises over which KMP and their relatives have 
significant influence

        Variable Plaza Pvt. Ltd.

        Welcome Suppliers Pvt. Ltd.

        Himatsingka Chemicals Pvt. Ltd

        J.R Chemtrade Pvt. Ltd.

        AH Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.

(a) Name of Related Party Transactions during the year
With Subsidiary Company Opening 

Balance
 Amount 
given during 
the year 

 Amount 
Returned 

 Closing 
Balance 

Dhyaneshwar Trades Private Limited 
(ceased to be subsidiary w.e.f 
13-10-2020)

22 19 19 22



116

PH TRADING LIMITED
CIN NO: L51109WB1982PLC035011

NOTES
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